
 

Mount Greylock Regional School District School Committee 
Education Subcommittee 
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 Time:  2:30 pm 
Location: Remote ZOOM meeting 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/97809570454 
 
Per Governor Baker’s order suspending certain provisions of the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 
30A sec. 20, the public will not be allowed to physically access this School Committee meeting 
 

Open Session Agenda 
 

I. Call to order 
II. Public comments 

III. Approval of minutes 
A. June 23, 2020 

IV. Reports from working group 
V. Discussion of back to school plans 
VI. Supplemental articles  

A. https://www.dropbox.com/sh/z6c40anua0pv2p1/AADZkRX2SAWgCqsCb3RKPOI
ia?dl=0 (provided by Amie Hane) 

VII. Other business not anticipated by the Chair within 48 hours of the meeting 
VIII. Motion to adjourn  
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/97809570454
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/z6c40anua0pv2p1/AADZkRX2SAWgCqsCb3RKPOIia?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/z6c40anua0pv2p1/AADZkRX2SAWgCqsCb3RKPOIia?dl=0


Mt. Greylock Regional School District

Page 1 

 School Committee Education Sub-Committee Minutes  

Date:  June 23, 2020 
Start:  3:01 PM  
Adjourn:  3:39 PM 

Location:  
Zoom 

In Attendance: 

Committee Members: Also Present: 
Steve Miller, Chair 
Alison Carter, Secretary 

Absent:    
Christina Conry, Vice Chair 

Kimberley Grady, Superintendent 
Mary MacDonald, MGRHS Principal 
Jake Schutz, MGRHS Assistant Principal and incoming 
Principal 
Nolan Pratt, LES Principal 
Joelle Brookner, WES Principal 
Eileen Belastock, Director of Academic Technology 
Patrick Priester 

Maureen Andersen 
Trevor Bayliss 
Pat Blackman  
Julia Bowen 
Stephen Dravis 
Julieann Haskins 
Susan Langman 
Rob Matthews 
Anna Mello 
Marty Walter 
Mary Angelo-Roberts 

Item Comments Motion Second Vote 
Call to order Meeting called to order by Steve at 3:01 PM 
Public comment Trevor Bayliss: Reached out to Kim knowing how difficult this is, as a medical provider taking 

care of a vulnerable population. Don’t have answers. Nuances are tricky. Part of impetus to 
reach out was concern about a vocal minority petitioning about reopening school without social 
distancing or masks. At least one SC member had endorsed this petition. Wanted to reach out 
from a medical perspective to help. In touch with local pediatricians and family practice group. 
Here to support and willing to help guide difficult decisions. Going forward Childsy Art (District 
physician) happy to be more actively involved. Waiting to see guidelines from MASC.  

DRAFT



 Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

  Page 2 
 

Approval of 
minutes 

June 8 meeting  Carter Miller 2-0-0 

Roadmap to 
Reopening 

Roadmap groups and Leads: 
Technology: Eileen  
Operations: Rob  
Facilities: Tim + custodial and cafeteria staff 
Instructional: Joelle 
Governance: Kim with Christina 
Parent group: Kim 
Wellness: Nolan 
MGEA (teacher and para bargaining units): Marty 
 
Kim: Were supposed to have Governor’s guidance last week – still do not have it; hopeful it will 
come out Thursday. Waiting for directives and guidance from Commissioner before getting 
going, but starting the conversations.  
 
Parent group met today; expressed concerns. Many expressed that if masks are not required 
they will not send their children. Need to solicit broader feedback from parents. 
 
Discussed health professional involvement with Trevor Bayliss. Will have school doctor on 
committee for reopening.  
 
Have received guidance for PPE ordering if opening for first 12 weeks.  
 
Working on faculty survey and family survey to solicit input on comfort levels.  
 
Still considering three options: full opening, hybrid in person/remote, all remote. Admin has no 
position on these options yet.  
 
Steve: Would like an agenda item at future subcommittee meeting to discuss alternatives 
provided and alternatives that may have not been considered yet. Steve suggests that 
community reach out with expertise to help come up with the best solution.  
 
Instructional: Joelle: Trying to plan for all contingencies. Want to plan to go back but also want 
to have a plan in case plug is pulled by state, like this spring. Want to survey teachers again but 
concerned about survey overload. Kim: MGEA has weighed in on surveys; Eileen will share 
Marty’s feedback with Joelle for further input. Marty wants well-rounded questions to ensure 
we get the information we are looking for. Will have another subcommittee meeting to discuss 
once guidelines and directives come out.  
 
Wellness: Nolan: Wellness committee has not met yet but collecting member feedback. Once 
we have roadmap can discuss in more detail. Kim: Met with school nurses who provided a 
questionnaire for summer programming, which could potentially start as soon as July 6. Patrick 

DRAFT



 Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

  Page 3 
 

working on a questionnaire for daily entry – symptom check at dropoff. Also tracking PPE 
deliveries. 
 
Technology: Eileen: Met today. Focusing on devices, platforms, and professional development. 
Survey questions about what devices teachers are using, what might need to be purchased. 
New technology demo week of July 6. Working toward Canvas as a consistent platform at 
MS/HS. Some elementary school teachers are interested but also have Google Classroom and 
Class Dojo. Models – small group instruction at elementary school level. Curriculum PD tied to 
instruction. Tiered approach at department level at MG. These are beginning conversations 
because we don’t know what things will look like yet – planning for all remote and will then 
work with whatever comes.  
 
Joelle: Likely a lot of overlap between working groups. Instructional group was discussing 
benchmarking and programming and interventions – links with wellness, technology. Need to 
make sure we connect or have cross-representation among groups. Kim: Jose Constantine and 
Nicole Porther assigned to help make those connections.  
 
MGEA: Marty and Kim meeting on Thursday to discuss; may need to reschedule if guidance is 
not out yet.  
 
Kim and Steve to discuss more about how to best convey information to school committee and 
community. For now suggest that roadmap subgroups present to full SC and community at the 
same time.  
 
Kim: Will keep posted on surveys – want to get out as soon as we can finalize.  
 
Steve: Tentative meeting next Wednesday or Thursday at 3pm. Kim will reach out to health 
professionals to attend.  
 

Business not 
anticipated  

None 

Adjourn MOTION to adjourn at 3:39 PM Carter Miller 2-0-0 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Alison Carter 
Education Sub-Committee Secretary 

DRAFT



Massachusetts Department of 
Elementary and Secondary Education 
 
75 Pleasant Street, Malden, Massachusetts 02148-4906  Telephone: (781) 338-3000 

                                                                                                                 TTY: N.E.T. Relay 1-800-439-2370 
 

 
Jeffrey C. Riley 
Commissioner 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

To: Superintendents, Charter School Leaders, Assistant Superintendents, Special 

Education Directors, Collaborative Leaders, and Leaders of Special 

Education Schools 

From:  Russell Johnston, Senior Associate Commissioner and State Director of 

Special Education 

Date:  July 9, 2020 

Subject: Guidance on Fall 2020 Special Education Services 

 
 

 

On June 25, 2020, the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (“Department”) 

released its Initial Fall Reopening Guidance, which prioritizes the safe return of students back to 

school by following a comprehensive set of health and safety requirements. The Initial Fall 

Guidance also asks schools and districts to prioritize and begin planning for in-person 

instruction, while simultaneously preparing blueprints for both remote learning and a hybrid 

school model (a combination of in-person and remote learning), should local conditions change 

this school year. This document supplements the Initial Fall Reopening Guidance by providing 

further information on supporting students with disabilities during the upcoming school year. It 

also provides necessary information in support of schools and districts, as they develop the 

portion of their reopening plans specifically related to special education.   

 

Schools and districts were unexpectedly required to rapidly transition to remote models of 

special education service delivery when in-person learning was suspended from mid-March 2020 

until the end of the 2019-2020 school year. Now, with more planning time and an emphasis on 

returning to in-person services in the school year ahead, this document is designed to provide 

guidance on these critical points: 

 

• School districts must provide a free and appropriate public education (FAPE) consistent 

with the need to protect the health and safety of students with disabilities and those 

individuals providing education, specialized instruction, and related services to these 

students. Students with disabilities, particularly preschool-age students and those with 

significant and complex needs, should be prioritized for receiving in-person instruction 

during the 2020-2021 school year. These students should receive as much in-person 

instruction as is feasible within the health and safety parameters in effect at each 

particular time. Even if schools or districts are operating in a hybrid or remote model, 

educators and administrators must make every effort to continue to provide up to full-

http://www.doe.mass.edu/covid19/


2 

 

time in-person instruction to such students. If in-person instruction cannot be provided 

and students with disabilities must receive instruction remotely in full, or in part, through 

a hybrid model, they must receive special education instruction and related services 

necessary to provide FAPE through an Instruction and Services model of delivery (e.g., 

structured lessons, teletherapy, video-based lessons, etc.) instead of relying solely on a 

Resources and Supports model (e.g., packets and assignments). For students with more 

significant and complex disabilities, providing one-on-one in-person instruction in the 

home or in a community-based setting should also be considered and made available as 

feasible, if it is not possible to provide instruction in an in-school setting. 

• When school resumes in-person, with health and safety requirements in place, general 

education, special education, and English language education staff members must 

collaborate in order to determine the unique modifications that will be necessary to 

ensure the least restrictive environment (LRE) is in place for students with disabilities. 

This will require careful planning and scheduling.  

• Family engagement is a critical component of school reopening. It is essential to reach 

out to parents and establish ongoing communication in a manner that works for the 

family. Parental input is always valuable, but is particularly critical during this time, 

when parents are ordinarily best positioned to observe their children and provide 

feedback on their children’s experiences. Data from parents on primary areas of need, 

their children’s ability to access remote learning, and other observations about their 

emotional and social well-being during the state of emergency will be essential to 

determining how to meet students’ needs when schools re-open.   

• It will also be important for families to provide input and to fully understand how the 

school or district plans to provide special education services to their children in the new 

school year.  

• For limited English proficient parents and guardians, the school or district must provide 

interpreters, translating special education notifications sent to families, as well as 

schedules, learning plans, IEPs, and Progress Reports. Districts and schools must also use 

interpreters at all IEP Team meetings. The school or district should arrange for parents to 

have a specific contact person(s) within the child’s special education Team and provide 

access to interpretation, if needed to communicate. The communication should be 

provided in language understandable to the general public. Many limited English 

proficient parents will require ongoing support in their own language so that they know 

what to expect from the school or district and how to support their child.  
 

This document covers other important topics such as positive approaches to behavior, monitoring 

student progress, and transition services that the Department wants schools and districts to have 

at the forefront of their planning for the reopening of schools in the Fall. The Department 

recommends that schools and districts start to implement this guidance immediately and continue 

to develop additional supports throughout the school year to further enhance the quality of 

learning for students with disabilities. 

 



3 

 

Delivery of IEP Services 

Students must receive all services documented in their IEPs through in-person instruction, 

remote instruction, or a combination of both, with a strong emphasis on providing in-person 

instruction to the greatest extent possible, while abiding by the current necessary health and 

safety requirements. In particular, the Department urges schools and districts to prioritize in-

person instruction for two particular groups of students with disabilities: preschool-aged 

students, and students with significant and complex needs. Remote learning is often more 

challenging for these students.   

 

For the purposes of this document, students with complex and significant needs include: 

 

• Students already identified as “high needs” through the IEP process on the IEP form 

entitled “Primary Disability/Level of Need-PL3.” Such students must meet at least two 

of these criteria:   

o Services provided outside of the general education classroom;  
o Service providers are special education teachers and related service providers;  
o Special education services constitute more than 75% of the student’s school day; 

• Students who cannot engage in remote learning due to their disability-related needs; 

• Students who primarily use aided and augmentative communication; 

• Students who are homeless 

• Students in foster care or congregate care; and/or 

• Students dually identified as English Learners. 

 

Even if the rest of the school has entered into a hybrid or remote model of instruction, schools 

and districts must make every effort to maintain in-person instruction for students with 

disabilities, particularly those with complex and significant needs and preschool-aged students. 

For example, if a school or district needs to implement a hybrid model of instruction for its 

students, teachers may be able to simultaneously maintain full-time in-person instruction for 

students in self-contained special education classes. In such situations, schools and districts 

should first attempt to maintain full-time in-person instruction (i.e., having the students remain in 

school for the entirety of their school day). If this is not possible, schools and districts are 

encouraged to provide as many in-person services as possible on a part-time basis (such as 

having the students come into school for related therapies, social skills groups, or Applied 

Behavior Analysis (ABA) services). Finally, in-person services may be provided in the home or 

in community-based settings where feasible for students with significant and complex needs, if it 

is not possible to provide services in the school setting. In sum, schools and districts must make  

their best efforts to take all necessary steps to ensure that students with disabilities, particularly 

preschool-aged students and those with complex or significant needs, receive as many services as 

possible in-person, whether full-time, part-time or in a student’s home or community-based 

setting (if feasible). 

  

http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/iep/forms/english/pl3.pdf


4 

 

Learning Models 

The sections below describe expectations for providing special education services through the 

three learning models schools and districts are expected to prepare prior to the reopening of 

school: in-person learning, hybrid learning and remote learning. While each model is described 

below, the Department re-emphasizes the importance of prioritizing in-person learning for 

students with disabilities, particularly preschool-aged students and those with complex and 

significant needs, if the school or district is unable to safely provide full-time in-person learning 

for all students. 

1. Full-time In-person Learning (while meeting current health and safety requirements) 

 

• Considerations for maximizing in-person learning for students with disabilities should be 

made when developing schedules. 

• When considering staffing alternatives for reducing class size, students with disabilities 

must receive specialized instruction and supports from qualified professionals. 

• Flexible solutions for reducing the mixing of student groups should be considered to 

ensure students with disabilities are receiving services safely in the least restrictive 

environment. 

• When considering the use of alternative school spaces or external facility spaces, 

considerations for providing students with disabilities with inclusive learning must be 

made and placement of students with disabilities in groupings or cohorts that support 

learning goals in the least restrictive environment should be prioritized.  

• When planning for full-time in-person learning, schools and districts should carefully 

consider the specific needs of their students with disabilities. While having classes 

outdoors may be a possibility for many students, this option may not be suitable for some 

students with disabilities. For example, students with visual impairments may have light 

sensitivity and/or outdoor settings may be too distracting. 

• Identify staff trained in various areas of special education to be included in the COVID-

19 Response Team. 

• Provide additional training time for educators who will provide direct physical support to 

students with disabilities on the use of the additional protective supplies they will need, 

including appropriately donning and doffing disposable gowns, face shields, etc. 

• Consider using strategies to pair peer models with students with disabilities to promote 

social interaction. 

Districts and schools should partner with parents to support a smooth transition to re-opening of 

school, given the introduction of the new social distancing protocols and schedules. It is 

particularly important that educators work closely with parents of children who experience 

difficulty with changes in routine (for example, students with autism) or children who experience 

anxiety with such changes. (For example, schools and districts may create social stories or video 

introductions from providers and teachers, recorded tours of new buildings or programs, or 



5 

 

provide opportunities for students to ride new bus routes and visit new school buildings in person 

before the school year begins.)  

2. Remote Learning 

 

• All schools and districts are required to have a comprehensive plan for delivering special 

education instruction and services remotely. This model must be available for individual 

students who are not returning in-person, and for all students in the event of future 

classroom or school closures due to COVID-19.  

• Remote learning in school year 2020-2021 is expected to be more robust than the models 

of remote learning implemented in the Spring of 2020 when schools and districts did not 

have time to fully plan for the changes in instruction and service delivery due to 

emergency school closures.  

• During the Spring of 2020, the Department described two models of service delivery that 

could be used to satisfy the requirement to provide a FAPE to students with disabilities: 

Resources and Supports (e.g., sending packets and assignments home coupled with 

frequent communication with parents) and Instruction and Services (e.g., structured 

learning time, teletherapy and video conferencing). With the ability to plan for the 

possibility of remote service delivery during the 2020-2021 school year, schools and 

districts must be prepared to provide services through “Instruction and Services” mode of 

delivery. The “Resources and Supports” delivery model can only be used on a temporary 

basis for a limited period of time (no more than two weeks), until which time the school 

or district has overcome the hurdles preventing service delivery through an “Instruction 

and Services” delivery model. 

• In accordance with 603 CMR 27.08(3)(b), as adopted by the Board of Elementary and 

Secondary Education on June 30, 2020, remote learning models shall include the 

following requirements: 
o Procedures for all students to participate in remote learning, including a system 

for tracking attendance and participation; 

o Remote academic work aligned to state standards; and 

o A policy for issuing grades for students’ remote academic work. Teachers and 

administrators shall regularly communicate with students’ parents and guardians, 

including providing interpretation and translation services to limited English 

proficient parents and guardians. 

• For school year 2020-2021 Instruction and Services must include the following 

components: 

o A regular and consistent schedule of classes, interventions, services and therapies 

as required by the student’s IEP, offered synchronously or asynchronously;  
o Structured learning time designed so that the student can access state standards; 

and  



6 

 

o Frequent interactions with teachers and other staff members to ensure 

participation.  

 

The consistent schedule of classes, interventions, services and therapies must include 

time spent interacting directly with teachers and related service providers on a regular 

basis, as well as some independent work time, as appropriate, and opportunities for 

interacting with classmates. Synchronous remote lessons or tele-therapy sessions can be 

provided via telephone or video conferencing. Students might also benefit from 

asynchronous pre-recorded videos of lessons to follow at home. For students receiving 

the majority of their daily instruction through special education, teachers and therapists 

should assign supplemental work (beyond lessons taught synchronously or 

asynchronously) during the school day that can be accomplished independently with 

guidance from and accountability to the teacher or therapist. 

 

• Schools and districts must support the infrastructure needed to put in place the required 

Instruction and Services, including availability of computer devices and internet 

connectivity in students’ homes, appropriate communication platforms, and educator and 

parent training. Parent training topics might include the use of devices and electronic 

learning and communication platforms, troubleshooting technology issues, expectations 

for structured learning time, supporting students’ social/emotional needs, etc., and 

trainings need to be offered in parent’s primary language 

 

3. Hybrid Learning 
 

• When planning for hybrid learning models, consideration for continuing to maximize in-

person learning for students with disabilities should be prioritized. Preschool-aged 

students with disabilities and students with significant and complex needs should be 

considered for continuous in-person learning to the greatest extent possible. For example, 

even if most students are not in school each day, schools should consider scheduling 

small groups of students with significant and complex disabilities for daily in-person 

instruction. Where appropriate, peers without disabilities should also be included to 

ensure inclusionary services. 

• Learning and services provided remotely via a hybrid learning model must follow the 

guidance provided in the section below on Remote Learning. Similarly, learning and 

services provided in-person must follow guidance provided in the section above on Full-

time In-person Learning while meeting the current health and safety requirements. 

• In-person services offered within the student’s home or in a community-based setting, 

particularly for students with significant and complex needs, can also be considered as 

part of a hybrid model to ensure that as many services as possible are provided in-person 

instead of remotely. 
 

  



7 

 

Promoting Inclusive Services and the Least Restrictive Environment (LRE) 

When planning for the physical distancing requirements for students and adults in a classroom, 

schools and districts should be mindful of the additional special educators and related service 

providers who will need to enter the classrooms throughout the school day to provide services to 

students with disabilities in the least restrictive environment. As such, the following should be 

considered: 

 

• Schools and districts should carefully develop classroom assignments and service 

delivery schedules for students with disabilities so that they receive services consistent 

with their IEPs in the least restrictive environment, as defined in 603 CMR 28.02(12), 

while also maintaining the current health and safety protocols. 

For example, special education teachers and related service providers (speech language 

pathologists, occupational therapists, etc.), could provide special education services in the 

general education setting (“B Grid”) services remotely from within the school building 

via video conference, instead of coming into the classroom to provide services. This 

practice would help to minimize foot traffic in and out of classrooms while also providing 

access to services that support the inclusion of students with disabilities. 

To support this model, schools and districts could train paraprofessionals to serve as 

facilitators for push-in services. Training should address technology-related issues, such 

as device use, electronic platform use, troubleshooting procedures, and other student-

specific needs and strategies. 

• If service providers are not able to provide special education services in the general 

education setting remotely within the school building via video conference, those 

educators or related service providers should schedule services in a manner that maintains 

physical distancing requirements and avoids overlapping with other staff in the classroom 

or physical setting. Some classrooms might need to have a marginally reduced number of 

students in order to accommodate the additional educators and staff members who are 

needed to support students with disabilities throughout the school day.  

• Schools and districts are encouraged to partner with parents to think creatively about how 

they can maintain opportunities for inclusion for students with disabilities. For example, 

students with disabilities often benefit from peer models, and providing inclusive 

groupings of students or using technology might help to support peer-to-peer connections 

while maintaining physical distancing requirements. 

 

Parent Engagement 

 

The Department strongly recommends that schools and districts cultivate excellent two-way 

communication with families. For example, schools and districts should ensure that classroom 

teachers, special education teachers, or related service providers communicate regularly with 

parents. The frequency and type of communication will vary depending on the child’s individual 

needs, language and technology access barriers families may face supporting their children with 

remote learning and the preferred mode of communication. The Department recommends that 

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr28.html?section=all


8 

 

school personnel document all of their communication with parents. All written and oral 

communication must be provided in the primary language of the home and in language that is 

understandable to the general public. This includes translating district-wide and special education 

notification sent to families, as well as translating special education documents, schedules, and 

instructions; learning plans, IEPs, Progress Reports and using interpreters at IEP Team meetings.  

 

Ongoing engagement will help educators, related service providers, and parents develop a 

comprehensive plan for students to receive individualized instruction and related services. IEP 

team members must consider information from parents regarding their children’s experiences 

during the state of emergency, including primary areas of need, ability to access remote learning 

during these past months, and other information critical to meet students’ needs as schools re-

open. Keep in mind that school closure can be traumatic, students may have regressed, and may 

have developed new disability-related areas of need, e.g. anxiety. Since most students will 

have spent several months in the full-time company of their family or caregivers, schools and 

districts should take the opportunity to obtain as much data and information from parents and 

caregivers as possible. Schools and districts should use all available data to anticipate the 

student’s present areas of need and levels of need during re-entry. In addition, it will help school 

personnel and families be prepared to quickly pivot should in-person services suddenly become 

unavailable. Ongoing engagement will also promote and sustain important connections between 

students and their teachers, a source of vital support and stability for students. Engagement 

between teachers and parents can occur through scheduled phone conversations, “office hours” 

when parents know they can reach teachers via phone or email, webinars for parents, etc. 
 

Schools and districts should explain to parents how decisions will be made relative to health and 

safety issues as they come up during the 2020-21 school year. Parents need to know at the start 

of the school year that schools and districts must take into account many different factors in 

totality when making decisions about adjustments to health and safety guidelines. Certain issues 

cannot be divulged to parents due to student privacy and confidentiality protections (such as the 

ways in which an individual student’s health needs might require unique health and safety 

protocols in a particular classroom). Student privacy and confidentiality must remain core to 

parent communications and should be respected by all parties. 
 

Parent engagement is particularly crucial when determining if and how special education 

services will be provided differently as a result of the changes to the overall learning 

environment associated with any of the three models of instruction schools and districts might 

employ during the 2020-21 school year (in-person, hybrid or remote learning models). Teachers 

or IEP liaisons should contact the parents of their students as soon as possible to discuss how a 

given student’s IEP services will be delivered if different than described in a student’s IEP, 

giving particular consideration to potential changes to how and where special education services 

will be provided. Using input from that discussion, teachers or liaisons must provide parents with 

written notification containing specific information about how IEP services will be provided 

promptly at the start of the 2020-21 school year. For example, if during in-person learning, a 

student will receive related therapies via video conferencing while in the general education 

classroom, parents must receive written notification describing this different mode of delivering 



9 

 

IEP services. Examples of this written notification include the use of DESE’s suggested 

Documentation of Modified In-Person, Remote or Hybrid Services template (forthcoming), 

Notice of Proposed School District Action (N1), letter or other written documentation.  

 

If special education services are provided differently than as they are described in a student’s 

IEP, parents must be notified in writing with specific information about how those services will 

be provided after they have discussed such matters with a teacher or IEP liaison. Written parent 

notification describing any differences in how special education services will be delivered should 

include how, where and when specialized services are being provided, and should be dated to 

reflect when services that are being provided differently begin.  Parental consent is not required 

to implement modified in-person, hybrid or remote special education services; however, such 

documentation should describe the school’s and district’s efforts to provide services as closely 

aligned to the way they are described in the IEP as possible. Schools and districts can provide 

notification of remote services to families in multiple ways, e.g., U.S. mail, email, student 

information systems, or online communication platforms if schools and districts determine that 

parents can access online communications effectively. It is also critical to note that these 

notifications must be provided in the primary language of the home. Furthermore, special 

education interpreters must be fluent in the primary language of the home and in English and 

familiar with special education terminology so that information is accurate and conveyed in a 

manner that is understandable to the parent. 

 

Developing Positive Behavior Supports and Safe Learning Environments  

Schools and districts should continue to create safe and supportive learning environments and 

provide proactive support to prevent unwanted behaviors in each of the three learning models 

planned for the 2020-2021 school year. Proactive direct instruction for school- and class-wide 

routines, social skills instruction, individualized social stories, and other preventative measures 

will be necessary, particularly following the disruption to normal school routines. Schools and 

districts should engage in conversations with parents about how their child is doing emotionally 

and behaviorally, and partner with parents in planning for the transition to in-person learning. 

Schools and districts may also need to provide additional supports for promoting positive 

behavior and reducing challenging behavior as schools reopen. Students will reacclimate to 

learning and school life at different rates. Additional considerations regarding how anxiety 

and/or trauma may impact the reintegration into normal school life should be considered, 

including providing Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3 supports available to students under a multi-tiered 

system of support.  

 

Under the present circumstances, schools and districts should utilize disciplinary action as a last 

resort for students with disabilities exhibiting behavioral challenges. Wearing of masks, 

maintaining social distance, adapting to new routines and protocols, and other nuances related to 

changes in the learning and the school environment may be challenging or frightening for 

students with disabilities. Retraining and development of strategies that directly address student 

concerns regarding the pandemic itself and/or other current events should be integrated into 

lessons and/or classroom routines. 

 

https://matoolsforschools.com/mtss-overview
https://matoolsforschools.com/mtss-overview


10 

 

Before administering discipline, it is critical that special educators and school administrators 

determine if behaviors deemed inappropriate are a result of situations brought about by the 

pandemic, or if such behaviors are caused time away from in-person learning. Appropriate 

planning for newly-identified concerns should be part of reentry planning. In addition, restorative 

practices and other diversionary strategies should be utilized in place of punitive measures to 

help focus on correcting the concerning behavior. Additional de-escalation training and/or 

training on trauma-sensitive practices for staff including school resource officers may be needed 

to support the transition back to full-time in-person learning in an environment altered by public 

health and safety needs, and the potential of increased behavioral concerns. 

 

Early Childhood Special Education and Preschool Children 

Preschool children with and without disabilities are particularly in need of in-person services so 

that they can develop the socialization, motor and communication skills that are vitally important 

at this age. Schools and districts should prioritize in-person instruction for this age group but 

should also be prepared to adjust to hybrid or remote services if necessary. As stated previously 

in this document, providing services in a student’s home if feasible might be a beneficial option, 

particularly if it is not possible to provide services in the school setting. 

 

In general, public preschools should follow DESE guidance, but can consult guidance provided 

by the Department of Early Education and Care (EEC) for additional information. However, for 

public preschools that enroll children who are eligible for and receive a voucher for financial 

assistance for childcare that is issued by EEC, districts and schools should check in with their 

EEC regional funded program monitors for additional information. 

 

District and school leaders should work with families to ensure family engagement strategies are 

in place, especially for families and children who are new to schools. For example, co-

developing protocols and social stories that help children learn social distance guidelines with 

families can be helpful. For additional guidance for IEP matrices across environments to assist 

children and families to address goals throughout the day, please see this guidance on the Florida 

Technical Assistance and Training System. 

 

Below are additional recommendations to consider when addressing the unique needs of 

preschool children with disabilities: 

 

Transition from Early Intervention  

An extension of Early Intervention (EI) services is available for children who turned 3 between 

March 15, 2020 and August 31, 2020. For those students, EI services can continue until special 

education eligibility determination can be completed and the child has transitioned to special 

education, or until October 15, 2020. Because as a result of the pandemic, many districts may 

have been unable to conduct evaluations, convene IEP meetings, and initiate services by the 

child’s third birthday, districts can expect an increased number of children needing to complete 

the eligibility determination process and an increased number of children needing special 

education services. School and district leaders should be prepared to complete the transition 

https://www.mass.gov/guides/early-education-and-care-financial-assistance-for-families
https://www.mass.gov/guides/early-education-and-care-financial-assistance-for-families
https://services.aap.org/en/pages/2019-novel-coronavirus-covid-19-infections/clinical-guidance/covid-19-planning-considerations-return-to-in-person-education-in-schools/
https://tats.ucf.edu/resources-and-ideas-for-districts-working-remotely-with-children-and-families/
https://tats.ucf.edu/resources-and-ideas-for-districts-working-remotely-with-children-and-families/


11 

 

process, have completed assessments, and an IEP signed for this group of students by October 

15, 2020. 

In partnership with EI providers, districts should develop a plan that explicitly outlines the 

transition process for each child with extended EI services and who are potentially eligible for 

school-based services. Additional resources are available in the Technical Assistance Advisory 

SPED 2019-1: Transition from Early Intervention Programs to Early Childhood Special 

Education. Districts should establish policies and procedures addressing the potential increase in 

assessments and the increase of children requiring special education services and should consider 

allocating additional staff, as necessary to complete assessments. There are several currently 

available tools that can be used to complete remote or face-to-face eligibility determinations.   

Natural Environments and LRE for Preschool Children 

 

In addition to public preschool programs, the LRE for preschool children includes natural 

environments which are comprised of childcare centers, community centers and the home. By 

developing IEP Activity Matrices, childcare center staff and families can see how IEP goals can 

be addressed in a variety of environments. For sample IEP Activity Matrices, see the Florida 

Technical Assistance and Training System. 

 

If children are attending childcare or Head Start programs, and IEP services are being provided, 

collaboration with the childcare staff is critical to ensure a smooth transition and delivery of IEP 

services. Public preschool staff and childcare staff should collaborate to ensure that special 

education services are being provided within current EEC guidelines as outlined below: 

The Requirements refer to “coordinating space and facilitating support services for 

children, including when identified on an Individualized Education Program (IEP) or 

Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP).” Programs should interpret this to mean 

setting aside appropriate space for the remote services or tele-health services to take 

place, rather than attempting to receive visits from outside adults into the program.   

The Department recognizes that schools and districts face unique challenges related to preschool 

programming for children without disabilities and therefore providing in-district inclusive 

education might be impacted. Districts that have part-time preschool programs and those that 

charge tuition are at an exceptional disadvantage. An updated process for seeking an alternative 

compliance waiver under 603 CMR 28.03(5) for inclusionary programs for young children 

during the COVID-19 pandemic is forthcoming.  

 

Kindergarten Screening  

 

Kindergarten screening requirements are set forth in 603 CMR 28.03(1)(d). Districts are required 

to screen three- and four-year old children for the Child Find process and for all children who are 

of age to enter kindergarten. The Department recognizes that because of the rapid shift to remote 

operation in the spring, kindergarten screening may have been delayed for some children. We 

recommend that schools and districts resume the screening process this summer (e.g., family 

interviews) using phone calls or virtual meetings. It may be helpful to complete in-person 

http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/2019-1ta.html
http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/2019-1ta.html
https://ectacenter.org/~pdfs/events/Assessment_Tool_Table.pdf
https://tats.ucf.edu/resources-and-ideas-for-districts-working-remotely-with-children-and-families/
https://tats.ucf.edu/resources-and-ideas-for-districts-working-remotely-with-children-and-families/
https://eeclead.force.com/resource/1593433571000/FAQ_Min_Req
https://eeclead.force.com/resource/1593433571000/FAQ_Min_Req
https://eeclead.force.com/resource/1593433571000/FAQ_Min_Req
https://eeclead.force.com/resource/1593433571000/FAQ_Min_Req
https://eeclead.force.com/resource/1593433571000/FAQ_Min_Req
http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr28.html?section=03
http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr28.html?section=03


12 

 

screening when children return to school in the fall and have an opportunity to first adjust to 

being in the classroom environment. The exception to delays in screening protocols is if a 

student has a suspected disability and/or already has been referred for a special education 

evaluation; in these cases, the district should move forward in a timely manner with evaluation 

procedures. 

 

In-person Instructional Environments and Physical Distancing for Preschool Children 

 

When determining classroom arrangement to accommodate physical distancing requirements, 

schools and districts should factor in the additional special educators and related service 

providers who will need to enter the classroom to provide services for young children with 

disabilities in the least restrictive environment. In light of the Department’s guidance that 

students at the elementary level remain in one classroom for the majority of the day, districts 

may want to consider whether pull-out services can be offered in accordance with the health and 

safety guidelines or, instead, if services should be pushed into the classroom. 

 

Given the specific health and safety requirements, schools and districts should reconfigure space 

to discourage prolonged close contact and instead encourage activities that allow for children to 

spread out. Programs may use different means to divide classrooms as needed to support group 

sizes and promote distancing requirements. These may include movable walls, partitions, or 

other barriers that clearly define and separate areas, ideally clear partitions so that children can 

see and interact with each other, while maintaining physical distance. Barriers should be robust 

enough to keep children physically separated and prevent materials and toys from being shared.   

• Schools and districts may also design their own strategies to implement this requirement, 

e.g., spacing chairs at tables, designing games and group activities where children may 

engage in play that can be spaced apart (for example, by using visual cues like hula hoops 

or developing social stories to support children in learning new rules), and increasing 

outdoor time.  

• Visual supports and strategies for direct instruction for children to maintain physical 

distance and comply with other health and safety guidelines will be critical. For 

additional ideas related to supporting social/emotional instruction and positive behavior 

supports, visit the Pyramid Model Consortium’s webpage. 

• Educators may also develop individual bins with activities/materials that still foster social 

interactions such as music and dancing; additionally, educators could identify materials 

that stretch across learning centers so that children can be working together on projects 

while remaining physically distanced (e.g., mural size paper).   

• The balancing of health and safety requirements with child development needs is 

something that will continue to evolve during this time of significant transition. The 

Department will rely on the expertise of educators to ensure daily schedules and activities 

are designed to foster physical distancing in the most effective way to mitigate virus 

spread while continuing to help children enjoy their day, support the development of 

social-emotional competencies, and foster learning. 

https://www.pyramidmodel.org/


13 

 

 

Hybrid/Remote Learning Considerations for Preschool Children 

 

As described above, the Department recommends that young children be prioritized for in-person 

instruction. If remote instruction becomes necessary, balance screen time and non-screen time by 

considering shorter virtual sessions and consider providing flexible offerings of live, recorded, 

small group instruction.   

 

• Pre-recorded enrichment activities aimed at providing practice and/or generalization 

opportunities can be provided outside of live learning time.   

• Keep learning opportunities interactive and similar to the routine of what children already 

were familiar with (e.g., circle songs, etc.) and when appropriate, pair new learning with 

familiar activities. 

• Given the remote aspect of learning in these circumstances, educators should be mindful 

of wait times to maximize opportunities for as many children to be engaged. 

• In-person services offered within the student’s home, particularly for preschool age 

students with complex and significant disabilities, can also be considered as part of a 

hybrid model to ensure that as many services are provided in-person instead of remotely.  

 

Monitoring Student Progress 

 

School districts, collaborative programs, and approved special education day and residential 

school programs must continue to issue Progress Reports at least as often as report cards or 

progress reports are provided for students without disabilities, in accordance with 603 CMR 

28.07(3). Progress Reports must be sent to families, guardians and state agencies involved with 

the student through mail, email, student information systems, or online communication 

platforms, and translated into the language of the home when required. The school must maintain 

documentation of when and to whom Progress Reports are issued. 

Educators and service providers must collect data and use this data to monitor the student’s 

progress to develop Progress Reports. If there are periods of remote learning, educators, service 

providers, parents, and students should review a student’s IEP and identify the types of data that 

can be collected from the student, family, and home environment. Staff can reimagine their roles 

in a hybrid or remote context, e.g., by using a tracking sheet to collect data from student videos, 

interviewing parents and students, or using assessments. There are many resources to aid in this 

work, for example: 

• The Texas Education Agency Phase 4 Remote Learning Plan Monitoring 

• Student Progress Monitoring Tool for Data Collection and Graphing 

• Measuring and Reporting Progress Toward Mastery of Annual Goals 

• Data Collection During Distance Learning 

• Using Google Drive to Collect Data for IEP Goals 

 

http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr28.html?section=07
http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr28.html?section=07
https://tea.texas.gov/texas-schools/health-safety-discipline/covid/phase-4-provide-monitoring-and-support
https://intensiveintervention.org/resource/student-progress-monitoring-tool-data-collection-and-graphing-excel
https://education.wm.edu/centers/ttac/resources/articles/iep/designingiepmeasuring/index.php
https://visualizeyourlearning.com/2020/04/14/4-types-of-data-to-collect-during-distance-learning/
https://teachingspecialthinkers.com/be-proactive-using-google-docs-to/


14 

 

Transition Services 

 

Although in-person participation in community-based programs and inclusive concurrent 

enrollment programs at institutions of higher education may be limited at this time, schools and 

districts should make best efforts to develop plans collaboratively with community-based 

providers, colleges, parents/guardians, and students in order for students to access as much 

transition programming as possible. Current health and safety requirements must remain a 

priority when making decisions as to the extent that transition services are able to be accessed in 

community-based settings; however, it is highly recommended that in-person transition services 

resume as soon as it is safe to do so with the proper health and safety measures in place.  

 

Initial Evaluations, Reevaluations and IEP Team Meetings 
 

The Department recognizes that due to the closure of school buildings and settings and the 

unexpected suspension of in-person education in March, annual review Team meetings, 

evaluations and/or parts of evaluations may have been postponed. As we plan to return to in-

person services and instruction, schools and districts will need to plan for addressing the backlog 

of assessments and meetings while simultaneously addressing the need to maintain timelines for 

annual review Team meetings and evaluations for students who are newly referred and/or due for 

an evaluation. Schools and districts should continue to follow the direction on meeting special 

education timelines as described in the Department’s Implementation of Special Education 

Timelines During the COVID-19 State of Emergency.  

 

IEP Teams must continue to conduct annual review Team meetings as they are due, in 

accordance with 603 CMR 28.04 (3). Districts are advised to update the IEP as though the 

student will be attending school full time in-person; however, given the unpredictable nature of 

the COVID-19 virus, schools and districts must be prepared to be adaptable in their approach to 

delivery of IEP services, based on the current health information and trends at that time. As was 

the case when schools closed in March, any changes to service delivery should be documented in 

writing to the parent. 

 

It is important to note that a change in the delivery of services due to a school’s change in 

learning model, in-person, hybrid or remote, as a result of COVID-19 does not result in a 

change in placement. The services outlined in the IEP remain and are considered “stay-put.” 

Schools and districts must maintain open communication and collaboration with families as they 

respond to the trajectory of the virus and make decisions about the opening and/or closing of 

school buildings and settings and the learning models to be utilized. 

 

  

http://www.doe.mass.edu/covid19/on-desktop/2020-0508hs-guidance.docx
http://www.doe.mass.edu/covid19/on-desktop/2020-0508hs-guidance.docx
http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/2020-2covid-ta.html
http://www.doe.mass.edu/sped/advisories/2020-2covid-ta.html
http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr28.html?section=04


15 

 

Considerations for Students with Low Incidence Disabilities 

• Students with high risk medical conditions 

o Parents/guardians of students with high risk medical conditions should be 

encouraged to consult their child’s healthcare provider to discuss the 

appropriateness of attending in-person instruction. This includes students who 

depend on mechanical ventilation and students with tracheostomies. School health 

professionals should work with primary healthcare providers to identify 

alternatives to nebulizer treatments in the school setting and to inform decision-

making relative to how the student can safely access in-person instruction.  

• Students with visual impairments 

 

o General considerations 

▪ Students with visual impairments do not acquire information incidentally 

and often need additional instructional time devoted to visual efficiency, 

technology, orientation and mobility (O&M), recreation and leisure, self-

determination, independent living skills, career education and 

compensatory skills, including communication. 

▪ Consider grouping students who need braille and/or tech instruction in 

centralized locations for specialized instruction in order to reduce 

Teachers of the Visually Impaired (TVIs) moving between several 

locations. 

▪ Academics of braille can be provided remotely; however, technique of 

braille and writing and reading should be prioritized for in-person 

learning. 

▪ O&M should be prioritized for in-person learning. Reteaching may be 

necessary once in-person learning resumes. 

 

o Technology Considerations  

▪ Use technology or software that allows screen sharing easily with the TVI 

to “see what they are seeing.” 
▪ Provide braille notetakers with Wi-Fi access, braille curriculum materials, 

and braille production capability from home, if possible. 

▪ Be sure links and sites that are shared with the classroom are accessible to 

students with visual impairments.  

▪ Students with low vision may need a larger monitor to interact with class 

remotely and for others the visual multitasking required to participate in 

live remote classes may be too overwhelming. Pre-teaching and 

reinforcement may be needed to assist with processing the live lesson. 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-at-higher-risk.html


16 

 

▪ Provide Bluetooth keyboards for students with visual impairments who 

have iPads to allow students to use accessibility keyboard shortcuts when 

in online platforms. Touchscreens have proven very difficult for students 

with visual impairments to use when accessing Google Meet or Zoom. 

▪ Reinforce technology skills such as using screen reading or magnification 

software, teaching keyboarding skills, and learning to navigate and use the 

Windows or Mac environment so that they are (1) more easily able to 

access remote learning and (2) more independent with their technology. 

▪ Provide accessible online typing program memberships to increase 

keyboarding skills for students with visual impairments to help ready them 

for more remote learning (Typio by Accessibyte is one option).  

▪ Provide check-ins with the district assistive technology specialist, the 

student/parent and the TVI to make sure equipment is working and to take 

care of any accessibility problems.  

 

• Students who are deaf or hard of hearing (DHH): 

▪ Consider the needs of students who must be able to see the lips of the 

speaker. 

▪ Purchase clear masks or shields, as needed, for staff. 

▪ Consider the need for an interpreter in the classroom for deaf or hard of 

hearing students and determine the logistics of social distancing and 

classroom setups. 

▪ Face shields and masks distort voice and are difficult with FM systems. 

The Massachusetts Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing is 

working on resources to address FM system use and will disseminate these 

when they are available. 

 

Staffing, Specialized Safety Supplies/Protective Equipment and Training 

 

Due to the need to be closer than the minimum physical distancing requirements when 

instructing some students with disabilities, the Department recommends that school and district 

special education service providers follow the guidelines that the Center for Disease Control 

describes for “direct service providers”.  Direct service providers include personal care 

attendants, direct support professionals, paraprofessionals, therapists, related services personnel, 

assistants, school nurses, health office staff, and any other staff who must come into close 

contact with students with disabilities.  

Direct service providers are essential for the health and well-being of the students they serve. 

Direct service providers should be aware of and trained on how COVID-19 spreads, risk factors, 

and prevention actions. Additional preventive measures may need to be taken depending on the 

activity and the risk level of that activity. Please note that DESE provided guidance on the 

provisioning of key safety supplies on June 5, 2020 in order to help schools and districts 

determine the quantities of the protective equipment described below: 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/direct-service-providers.html
http://www.doe.mass.edu/covid19/on-desktop.html
http://www.doe.mass.edu/covid19/on-desktop.html


17 

 

 

 

 

Some students with disabilities will require unique supports that may make it less possible to 

practice physical distancing. In addition, some students with disabilities will not be able to wear 

cloth face masks as frequently or at all. In order to support such students safely, schools and 

districts must ensure that: 

 

• Classrooms are adequately staffed, and in accordance with any approved student: 

licensed educator: aide ratios; 

• Educators, related service providers, paraprofessionals and other staff members are 

prepared with any additional protective equipment that may be needed as unexpected 

situations arise, such as disposable gowns, face shields, etc.; 

• When assessing the amount of protective equipment needed, considerations should be 

made for itinerant staff who interact with multiple groups of students in multiple 

locations, staff who perform tasks routinely that require close proximity and/or physical 

contact with students, and those who go out into the community to support students’ 

educational programming; 

Classification of 

Individual Wearing 

protective equipment 

N95 or 

KN95 

Respirator 

 Face Shield Disposable 

Gowns 

Disposable 

Gloves 

Gowns/ Coveralls/ 

Other Body 

Covering 

Cloth Face 

Covering  

Disposable 

mask 

DSPs in care areas of 

students with suspected 

COVID-19  
X 

 

X 

 

X X X  

X 

(with face 

shield if 

N95/KN95 not 

available) 

DSPs in the same facility 

but not in the care areas for 

students with suspected 

COVID-19 

     X  

DSPs providing personal 

care to students without 

suspected COVID-19 but 

who may potentially be 

exposed to bodily fluids 

 X (preferred)  X   X 

DSPs performing or 

present during aerosol 

generating procedures such 

as nebulizer treatments, 

chest PT, suctioning, trach 

care  

X X  X X   

Transportation 

personnel/monitors who 

must come in direct 

physical contact with 
passengers (e.g. 

buckling/unbuckling, 

performing wheelchair 

safety services) 

   X  X  



18 

 

• All staff members using additional protective equipment are properly trained to 

accommodate children’s needs (See BU SHIELD COVID-19 training resources for 

videos, posters and other training materials); and 

• Families are consulted as partners to ensure the health and safety of students. 

 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/downloads/A_FS_HCP_COVID19_PPE_11x17.pdf
https://www.bucme.org/node/1220


Community Interventions and Critical Populations Task Force
CDC COVID-19 Emergency Response

CRAFT

Schools Briefing

Packet

July 8, 2019



Contents

EXISTINGCDCGUIDANCE........................................................................................................2

K-12:INTERIMGUIDANCEFORADMINISTRATORSOFUSK-12SCHOOLSANDCHILDCAREPROGRAMS............2

IHE:CONSIDERATIONSFORINSTITUTIONSOFHIGHEREDUCATION.............................................................6

K-12T ESTING: I NTERIMC ONSIDERATIONSFORK-12S CHOOLA DMINISTRATORSFORSARS-CO V-2T ESTING....8

IHETESTING:INTERIMCONSIDERATIONSFORINSTITUTIONSOFHIGHEREDUCATIONADMINISTRATORSFOR

SARS-COV-2TESTING....................................................................................................................12

TALKINGPOINTS...................................................................................................................16

K-12...........................................................................................................................................16

INSTITUTIONSOFHIGHEREDUCATION(IHE)........................................................................................16

IHEA THLETICS..............................................................................................................................19

SCHOOLREOPENINGPLANS...................................................................................................21

E XAMPLESOFK-12R EOPENINGANDM ITIGATIONP LANSFOR2020.......................................................21

E XAMPLESOFI NSTITUTIONSOFH IGHERE DUCATION(IHES ) R EOPENINGANDM ITIGATIONP LANSFOR2020..51

MONITORINGANDEVALUATIONCONSIDERATIONSFORK-12SCHOOLSANDINSTITUTIONSOF

HIGHEREDUCATION(IHE)......................................................................................................66

P OTENTIALI NDICATORSFORK-12S CHOOLSANDIHETOCONSIDER.........................................................67

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

1



Existing CDC Guidance

K-12: Interim Guidance for Administrators of US K-12 Schools

and Child Care Programs

Considerationsfor Schools

As some communities in the United States open K-12 schools, CDC offers considerations for ways in
which schools can help protect students, teachers, administrators,and staff and slow the spread of

COVID-19. Schools can determine, incollaboration with state and localhealthofficials to the extent
possible,whether and how to implement these considerations whileadjusting to meet the unique needs

and circumstances of the local community. Implementationshould be guided by what is feasible,
practical, acceptable,and tailored to the needs of each community.School-basedhealth facilities may

refer to CDC’s Guidance for U.S.HealthcareFacilities and may find it helpful to reference the Ten Ways
HealthcareSystems Can Operate Effectively Duringthe COVID-19 Pandemic.These considerations are

meant to supplement—not replace—any state, local, territorial, or tribal healthand safety laws, rules,
and regulations with which schools must comply.

The considerationsare written with Guiding Principlesto Keep in Mind including:

The more people a student or staff member interacts with, and the longer that interaction, the higher

the risk of COVID-19 spread. The risk of COVID-19 spread increases in school settings as follows:

The considerations cover PromotingBehaviorsthat ReduceSpread,MaintainingHealthy Environments,

MaintainingHealthyOperations,and Preparing for When SomeoneGets Sick.Various supporting

communications materials are also available.

School administrators can use CDC’s K-12 Schools Readiness and Planning Tool to help protect students,

staff and communities.

K-12SchoolsandChildCarePrograms

FAQsfor Administrators,Teachers,and Parents

• Lowest Risk: Students and teachers engage invirtual-only classes, activities, and events.

• More Risk: Small, in-person classes, activities, and events. Groups of students stay together and

with the same teacher throughout/across school days and groups do not mix.Students remain

at least 6 feet apart and do not share objects (e.g.,hybrid virtual and in-person class structures,

or staggered/rotated scheduling to accommodate smaller class sizes).

• Highest Risk: Fullsized, in-person classes, activities, and events. Students are not spaced apart,

share classroom materials or supplies, and mix between classes and activities.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

2



FORINTERNALUSEONLY

Administrators

PlanningandRespondingto COVID - 19

What should I consider as I plan and prepare for COVID -19? +

Whatcan staffand studentsdo to preventthespread ofCOVID- 19? +

How should my school prepare when there is no community transmission in our area ? +

What should includeinmy emergency operationsplan ? +

How should my schoolprepare when there is minimalto moderate community transmission in our area? +

Whatshould I dowhen thereis substantialcommunitytransmission? +

What resources does CDC have available to share with staff , students , and parents ? +

WhatshouldI do ifmyschoolexperiencesincreasedratesof absenteeism ? +

What steps should my school take if a student or staffmember shows symptoms of COVID - 19? +

+What should I if the suspected sick studentor staffmember is confirmed to have COVID -19?

Ifchildren with asthma use breathing treatments” or peak flow meters, do schoolsneed to be concerned
about aerosolizing the virus that causes COVID-19?

+

+

each child hashis or her own spacer, can a school'smetered dose inhaler be used bymorethan onestudent
ifthe actuator iscleaned before useby another student?

Ifa school is considering limiting students to the local geographic area due to a phased opening ,would

children displaced due to homelessness be prohibited from attending their home school?
+

Teachers

What can teachers do to protect themselves and their students ?

How should I talk tomystudents about COVID - 19? +

Parents

What are schools doing to prepare for COVID -19? +

How will i know ifmy child's school is closed ? +

Are childrenmoreat- risk ? +

How should parentstalk to children aboutCOVID- 19?

Interim Guidance for AdministratorsofUS K - 12 Schools and Child Care Programs

3



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Plan , Prepare, and Respond to Coronavirus Disease 2019 ( COVID - 19)

Who is this guidance for?

This interim guidance is intended for administrators of public and private child care programs and K -12
schools . Administrators are individuals who oversee the daily operations of child care programs and K
12 schools , and may include positions like child care program directors , school district superintendents ,
principals , and assistant principals . This guidance is intended for administrators at both the
school/ facility and district level.

Why is thisguidancebeing issued?

This guidance willhelp child care programs, schools, and their partners understand how to help prevent
the transmission of COVID -19 within child care and school communities and facilities . It also aims to help

child care programs, schools , and partners react quickly should a case be identified . The guidance
includes considerations to help administrators plan for the continuity of teaching and learning if there is

community spread of COVID - 19.

What is theroleof schools in respondingto COVID- 19?

Schools, working together with localhealth departments, have an important role in slowing the spread
of diseases to help ensure students have safe and healthy learning environments . Schools serve
students , staff , and visitors from throughout the community . Allofthese people may have close contact

in the school setting , often sharing spaces, equipment , and supplies.

InformationaboutCOVID-19in children is somewhatlimited,butthe information that is available

suggests that childrenwith confirmedCOVID- 19 generallyhadmildsymptoms. Person- -person spread
from orto children, as among adults, is thoughtto occurmainly via respiratorydropletsproducedwhen

an infectedperson coughs, sneezes, or talks. Recentstudies indicatethat peoplewho are infectedbut
donothave symptomslikelyalsoplay a role in the spreadof COVID- 19.

However, a small percentage of children have been reported to havemore severe illness. Older adults
and people who have serious underlying medical conditions are at highest risk ofsevere illness
fromCOVID - 19. Despite lower risk of serious illness amongmost children , children with COVID -19- like

symptoms should avoid contact with others who mightbe at high risk for severe illness from COVID - 19 .

How should schools prepare for, and respond to , COVID - 19 ?

Schoolsshould bepreparedforCOVID-19 outbreaksin their local communitiesand for individual

exposure events to occur in their facilities, regardlessofthe levelofcommunitytransmission, for
example a case associatedwith recenttravel to an area with sustainedCOVID - 19 transmission. The

followingdecision tree can beused to help schools determinewhich setofmitigation strategiesmaybe

mostappropriate for their current situation.

4



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

SchoolDecision Tree

All SchoolsRegardlessof CommunitySpread

Confirmed person
with COVID -19 in

building?
Assess

Risk

Short (potential2-5 Day)
BuildingDismissalto

Clean/Disinfect/Contact
Tracein consultationwith

localhealth officials

No Community Spread Minimal to Moderate OR SubstantialCommunity Spread

M /M Is community spread Minimal to
Moderate or Substantial?

Prepare

Teach and reinforcehealthy hygiene

Develop information sharing systems
Intensify cleaning and disinfection
Monitor for absenteeism

Assess group gatherings and events
- consider postponing non- critical

gatherings and events

Require sick students and staffstay home

Establish proceduresfor someone

becoming sick atschool

Coordinate with local

health officials.
Implementmultiple
socialdistancing
strategiesfor
gatherings, classrooms,

andmovementthrough
thebuilding.
Considerways to
accommodate needs of

children and families at
high risk.

Coordinate with localhealth officials.

Implementmultiple socialdistancing

strategies for gatherings, classrooms,
and movement through the

building WITH EXTENDED SCHOOL

DISMISSALS

Consider ways to accommodate

needs ofchildren and families at high
risk

Monitorchangesin
communityspread CDC

5



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

IHE: Considerations for Institutions of Higher Education

Colleges, Universities, and Higher Learning: Plan, Prepare, andRespond

Health Considerations and Tools

Considerations for operating institutions of higher education

Cleaning and disinfection guidance

More Information to Plan , Prepare, and Respond

Interim guidance for administrators
Guidance for student travel

Considerations for administrators
Worker safety and support resources
Interim guidance for businesses and workplaces

Considerationsfor InstitutionsofHigherEducation

As some institutions of higher education (IHE) open in the United States, the Centers for Disease Control

and Prevention (CDC) offers the following considerations forways in which IHEs can help protect
students and employees ( e.g., faculty, staff , and administrators ) and slow the spread ofthe Coronavirus

Disease 2019 (COVID - 19). vary considerably in geographic location , size , and structure . As such , IHE
officials can determine, in collaboration with state and localhealth officials , whether and how to

implement these considerations while adjusting to meet the unique needsand circumstances of the IHE
and local community . Implementation should be guided by what is feasible , practical , acceptable , and

tailored to the needs of each community . Health facilities managed by the may refer to CDC's
Guidance for U.S.Healthcare Facilities andmay find ithelpful to reference the Ten Ways Healthcare
Systems Can Operate Effectively During the COVID -19 Pandemic . These considerations aremeant to

supplement - not replace state, local, territorial, or tribalhealth and safety laws, rules, and

regulations with which must comply .

The considerationsinclude:

Guiding Principles

General Settings

On-Campus Settings

Reduce Spread

Healthy Environments

Healthy Operations
When Someone Gets Sick

Other Resources

6



FORINTERNALUSEONLY

Guiding Principles to in Mind

Themore an individualinteracts with others,and the longer that interaction, the higher the risk of
COVID -19 spread. The risk of COVID -19 spread increases in IHE non-residential and residential (i.e.,on
campus housing) settings as follows:

GeneralSettings

Lowest Risk : Faculty and students engage in virtual-only learning options, activities, and events.

MoreRisk : Small in -person classes, activities, and events. Individuals remain spaced atleast 6
feet apart and do not share objects ( e.g.,hybrid virtual and in -person class structuresor
staggered/ rotated scheduling to accommodate smaller class sizes).

Highest Risk: Full-sized in -person classes, activities, and events . Students are not spaced apart,
share classroom materials or supplies, andmix between classes and activities.

- Campus Housing Settings

Lowest Risk Residencehalls are closed , where feasible .

More Risk : Residencehalls are open at lower capacity andshared spaces are closed ( e.g.,
kitchens, common areas).

HighestRisk : Residencehalls are open at fullcapacity including shared spaces ( e.g., kitchens,

common areas).

COVID- 19 is mostlyspreadby respiratorydropletsreleasedwhen peopletalk , cough, or sneeze. Itis
thought thatthevirusmay spreadto handsfrom a contaminatedsurfaceandthen to thenose or

mouth, causinginfection. Therefore, personalprevention practices(such as handwashing, stayinghome
when sick ) and environmentalpreventionpractices(such as cleaningand disinfection) are important
principlesthat arecovered in this document. Fortunately, thereare a numberof actionsIHE

administratorscan take to help lowertherisk ofCOVID- 19 exposureand spread.

CDC Stakeholder Call: https://youtu.be/gxgH8-VGVwl

7



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

K - 12 Testing: Interim Considerations for K -12 School

Administrators for SARS- 2 Testing
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-testing.html

Updated June 30, 2020

These interim considerations are based on what is currently known about SARS- CoV-2 and COVID -19 as of

the date of posting, June 30 , 2020.

TheUSCenters for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC ) will update these considerationsasneeded and as

additionalinformation becomes available. Please check CDC website periodically for updated interim

guidance.

Note: This document is intended to provideconsiderations on theappropriate use of testing and does
notdictate thedetermination ofpaymentdecisionsor insurance coverage of such testing, except as

may beotherwise referenced (or prescribed) by another entity or federal or state agency . CDC is a
non-regulatory agency; therefore, the information in thisdocument ismeant to assist K - 12 schools in

making decisionsrather than establishing regulatory requirements.

As somecommunities in the United States open K - 12 schools, CDC offers considerations for ways in
which schools can help protect students and staff and slow the spread of SARS- -2 , the virus that

causes coronavirusdisease 2019 ( COVID -19). Testing to diagnose COVID - 19 isone componentof a

comprehensive strategy and should be used in conjunction with promotingbehaviors that reduce
spread,maintaininghealthy environments,maintaininghealthy operations, and preparing forwhen
someonegets sick.

Schools should determine, in collaboration with state, tribal, territorial, and localhealth officials, and, in

the case ofK - 12 schools operated by the federal government(e.g., K -12 schools for Departmentof
Defense Dependents]) appropriate federalhealth officials,whether to implement any testing
strategy , and if so,how to best do so. These CDC considerations aremeantto supplement not

replace anyfederal, state , local, territorial, or tribalhealth and safety laws, rules, and regulations with

which schoolsmust comply. Implementation should be guided bywhat is feasible, practical, and
acceptable and be tailored to theneedsofeach community.

Symptom screeningandtesting are strategies to identify individualswith COVID - 19. Inaddition to

screeningand testing, contact tracing is an effectivedisease controlstrategy that involvesinvestigating
cases and their contacts by asking individualsto isolate and contactsto quarantineathome
voluntarily. Screening, testing, and contact tracing are actionsthatcan be taken to slow and stop the
spreadof transmission of COVID- 19. Thesestrategiesmustbe carried out in a way thatprotectsprivacy

and confidentiality consistentwith applicablelawsand regulations. In addition to state and locallaws,

regulations and guidance, schooladministratorsshould follow guidancefrom theEqualEmployment
Opportunity Commission when offering SARS- -2 testingto employeesand staff. Schools also should
follow guidance from the U.S.DepartmentofEducation on the Family EducationalRights and PrivacyAct

(FERPA) and its applicability to students and COVID- 19 contact tracingand testing.

8



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

While schools play a role in identifying students, faculty, andstaffwho have COVID- 19 symptomsorwho

have hadrecentknown orpotentialexposure to SARS- 2, schoolstaff are notexpected to directly
administer SARS- CoV -2 tests. In somecircumstances, school-basedhealthcare providers(e.g., school

nurses, physicians)may conduct SARS- 2 testing in their capacity ashealthcare providers, such as in

school-based health centers. Notevery school-basedhealthcare providerwillhave theresourcesor

training to conducttesting, and accordingly, shouldnot feelcompelled to do so; these providers can
help link students and their families and staff to other opportunities for testing in the community.

Typesoftests to identify SARS- - 2 , the virusthatcauses COVID - 19

Viraltests approved or authorized by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) arerecommended

to diagnose current infection with SARS- -2, the virus that causes COVID -19. Viraltests evaluate

whether the virus ispresent in a respiratory sample. Results from these testshelp public health officials
identify and isolate people who are infected in order to minimize SARS- 2 transmission.

Antibody tests approvedor authorized bytheFDA are used to detect a past infection with SARS- - 2.

CDC doesnot currently recommendusing antibodytesting as the sole basis for diagnosing current

infection. Depending on when someonewas infected and the timing of the test, the testmay not find

antibodies in someonewith a current COVID - 19 infection. In addition, it is not currently proven whether

a positive antibody test indicates protection against future SARS- - 2 infection ; therefore, antibody
tests should notbeused at this time to determine if someone is immune.

CDC recommendationsfor SARS- 2 testing arebased on what is currently knownaboutthevirus
SARS- -2 andwhat is known aboutit continuesto changerapidly. Information on testing for SARS

-2 willbe updated asmoreinformation becomesavailable.

When testingmightbeneeded

This documentdescribes scenarioswhen K- 12 studentsorstaffmay need to have a SARS- 2 viral

test, though ultimate determinations for such a test restwith schools, in consultation with localhealth
officials:

Testing individualswith signs or symptomsconsistentwith COVID - 19

Testing asymptomatic individualswith recentknownor suspected exposure to SARS- - 2 to

controltransmission

Testing individuals with signs or symptomsconsistentwith COVID- 19

Consistentwith CDC'srecommendations, individualswith COVID- 19 signsor symptomsshould be

referredto a healthcareproviderfor evaluationon whethertesting isneeded. In somelocations,
individualscan also visit their state, tribal, territorialor localhealth department'swebsite to look for the
latest localinformationon testing.

One strategy to identify individualswith COVID-19symptomsis to conduct symptom screenings, such as
temperaturescreeningand/ or symptom checkingof staff and students. These screeningsareoneof

manydifferenttoolsschools can use to help lowertheriskofSARS- -2 transmission. However,
because symptom screeningsarenothelpfulfor identificationof individualswith COVID- 19 whomaybe

9



asymptomaticor pre-symptomaticor if infectedwithanunrelatedvirus, symptomscreeningwillnot

preventall individualswithCOVID-19fromenteringtheschool.Screeningsshouldbeconductedsafely
andrespectfullyand inaccordancewithany applicableprivacylaws andregulations.School

administratorsmayuseexamplesof screeningmethodsinCDC’ssupplementalGuidancefor ChildCare
Programsthat RemainOpenas a guidefor screeningchildrenandCDC’s GeneralBusinessFAQs for

screeningstaff.

As part of symptom screening, schools shouldbe preparedto refer symptomatic individuals to an

appropriatehealthcareprovider or testing site.State,Tribal, territorial,and localhealth officials and/or

healthcareproviders will determinewhen viral testing for SARS-CoV-2 is appropriate. For DoD

dependents and personnel,federal or DoDhealthofficials will determinewhen such testing is

appropriate.

Testingasymptomaticindividualswithrecentknownor suspectedexposureto a personwithCOVID-

19

SARS-CoV-2testingis recommendedfor allclosecontactsof personswithCOVID-19:

Testingasymptomaticindividualswithoutknownexposureto a personwithCOVID-19

Universal SARS-CoV-2 testing of all students and staff inschool settings has not been systematically

studied. It is not known if testing in school settings provides any additional reduction inperson-to-

person transmission of the virus beyond what would be expected with implementation of other

infection preventive measures (e.g., social distancing, cloth face covering, hand washing, enhanced

cleaning and disinfecting). Therefore, CDC does not recommend universal testing of all students and

staff. Implementation of a universal approach to testing in schools may pose challenges, such as the lack

of infrastructure to support routine testing and follow up in the school setting, unknown acceptability of

• Schoolsshouldimmediatelyseparatestudentsandstaff withCOVID-19symptomsat schoolby

identifyingan isolationroomor area.

• Individuals who are sick should go home or to a healthcare facility, depending on how severe

their symptoms are, and they or their caregivers (in the case of minors)should follow CDC

guidance for caring for oneself. Individuals should also watch for emergency symptoms and seek

emergency medicalcare if symptoms occur.

• Becauseof the potentialfor asymptomaticandpre-symptomatictransmissionof the virus,it is

importantthat contacts of students or staff withCOVID-19bequickly identifiedandtested. This

is particularlyvital for protectingpeoplewho are at increasedrisk of severeillnessfrom COVID-

19.Everyoneis at risk for getting COVID-19if they are exposed to the virus, but somepeopleare

more likely thanothersto becomeseverely ill,whichmeans that they may require

hospitalization,intensivecare,or a ventilatorto help them breathe,or they may evendie.

• Additionally, in accordance with state, Tribal, territorial, and local laws and regulations, school

administrators should work with local health officials to inform those who have had close

contact with a person diagnosed with COVID-19 to stay home and self-monitor for symptoms.

• Healthcareprovidersor healthofficialswilldeterminewhenviral testingof asymptomatic

studentsor staff for SARS-CoV-2is appropriate.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

10



this testing approach among students,parents,and staff, lack of dedicated resources,practical
considerations related to testing minors and potentialdisruption in the educationalenvironment.

Moreresources for K-12 schools:

• Formoreinformationon facility-widetesting for asymptomaticindividuals,pleasesee

theStandardizedprocedurefor broad-basedtesting for SARS-CoV-2.

• Foradditionalconsiderationsfor reducingCOVID-19spreadinK-12schools,see

theConsiderationsfor Schools.

• ForinformationaboutdailylifeandcopingduringCOVID-19for students,staff,andfamilies:

o Encourageemployeesandstudentsto takebreaksfrom watching,reading,or listening

to news stories,includingsocialmedia if they arefeelingoverwhelmedor distressed.

o Promoteemployeesandstudentseatinghealthy,exercising,gettingsleepand finding

timeto unwind.

o Encourageemployeesandstudentsto talk with peoplethey trustabouttheirconcerns

andhowthey arefeeling.

o Considerpostingsignagesfor thenationaldistresshotline:1-800-985-5990,or text

TalkWithUsto 66746

o Communities,Schools,Workplaces,and Events:Informationfor WhereYouLive,Work,

Learn,and Play

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

11



IHE Testing: InterimConsiderations for Institutions of Higher

EducationAdministrators for SARS-CoV-2 Testing
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/colleges-universities/ihe-testing.html

UpdatedJune 30,2020

Note: This document is intendedto provideconsiderationson the appropriateuseof testing and does

notdictatethe determinationof paymentdecisions or insurancecoverageof suchtesting,exceptas

may beotherwisereferenced(or prescribed)by anotherentity or federalor stateagency.CDC is a

non-regulatoryagency; therefore,the informationinthis document is meantto assist institutesof

higher education(IHEs) inmakingdecisions ratherthan establishingregulatory requirements.

As someinstitutionsof higher education(IHEs) open in the UnitedStates,CDC offers considerationsfor

ways inwhich IHEs can helpprotectstudents,faculty,andstaff andslow the spreadof the coronavirus

disease2019 (COVID-19).Testing to diagnoseCOVID-19is one componentof a comprehensivestrategy

andshouldbeusedinconjunctionwithpromotingbehaviors that reducespread,maintaininghealthy

environments,maintaininghealthyoperations,andpreparingfor when someonegets sick.

These CDC considerations are meant to supplement—not replace—any federal, state, local, territorial,

or tribal healthand safety laws,rules, and regulationswith which IHEs must comply. Implementation

should be guided by what is feasible, practical,and acceptable,as well as tailored to the needs of each

community.

IHEs vary considerably in geographic location, size, and structure. As such, IHE officials should

determine, incollaboration with state and local health officials, whether to implement any testing

strategy, and if so, how to best do so.

Theseinterimconsiderationsarebasedonwhat is currentlyknownaboutSARS-CoV-2andCOVID-19as of

the dateof posting,June30,2020.

The US Centers for DiseaseControl and Prevention (CDC) will update these considerations as needed and

as additional information becomes available. Please check the CDC website periodically for updated

interim guidance.

Symptomscreeningandtestingarestrategiesto identifyindividualswith COVID-19.Inadditionto
screeningandtesting,COVID-19contacttracing is aneffectivediseasecontrolstrategythat involves
identifyingindividualsandtheir contacts.Screening,testing,andcontacttracingareactions that canbe

takento slow andstopthespreadof COVID-19.Thesestrategiesmustbecarriedout ina way that
protectsindividuals’privacyand confidentialityandis consistentwithapplicablelaws andregulations.In

additionto stateandlocallaws,IHE administratorsshouldfollowguidancefromthe EqualEmployment
OpportunityCommissionwhenofferingtesting to faculty,staff,andstudentswhoareemployedby the

IHE.IHEs also shouldfollowguidancefromthe U.S.Departmentof Educationonthe FamilyEducational
RightsandPrivacyAct (FERPA)andthe HealthInsurancePortabilityand AccountabilityAct (HIPAA)and
their applicabilityto studentsand COVID-19contacttracing andtesting.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

12



Types of tests to identifySARS-CoV-2,thevirus thatcausesCOVID-19

Viral tests approvedor authorizedby the Food and Drug Administration (FDA)are recommended

to diagnosecurrent infection with SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19.Viral tests evaluate

whether the virus is present in a respiratory sample. Results from these tests help public healthofficials

identify and isolate people who are infected inorder to minimizeSARS-CoV-2 transmission.

Antibodytests approvedor authorizedby the FDA are usedto detectpast infectionwith SARS-CoV-2.

CDC does notcurrently recommendusing antibody testing as the sole basis for diagnosingcurrent

infection.Dependingonwhensomeonewas infectedand the timing of the test, the test maynot find

antibodies insomeonewith a currentCOVID-19infection.In addition,it is currentlynotknownwhether

a positiveantibodytest indicates immunity againstSARS-CoV-2;therefore,antibody tests shouldnotbe

usedat this time to determineif an individualis immune.

CDC recommendations for SARS-CoV-2 testing are based on what is currently known about the virus.

SARS-CoV-2 is new and what is known about it continues to change rapidly. Informationon testing for

SARS-CoV-2 will be updated as more information becomes available.

Whentestingmightbeneeded

This document describes scenarios when IHEs may need to conduct SARS-CoV-2 viral testing for

students, faculty, or staff, though ultimate determinations for such a test rest with IHEs inconsultation

with local health officials:

Testingindividualswithsigns or symptomsconsistentwithCOVID-19

Consistent with CDC’s recommendations,individualswith COVID-19 signs or symptoms should be

referred to a healthcareprovider for evaluationon whether testing is needed.Insome locations,

individualscan also visit their state or localhealth department’s website to look for the latest local

informationon testing.

Onestrategyto identify individualswithCOVID-19signs or symptomsis to conduct daily symptom
screeningsuch as temperaturescreeningand/or symptomcheckingfor students,faculty,andstaff.
Thesescreeningsareoneof manystrategiesIHEs canuseto helplowerthe riskof COVID-19

transmission.However,becausesymptomscreeningsarenothelpfulfor identificationof individuals
withCOVID-19whomay beasymptomaticor pre-symptomatic,symptomscreeningalonewillnot

preventall individualswithCOVID-19fromenteringthe IHE.Screeningsshouldbeconductedsafelyand
respectfullyandinaccordancewithany applicableprivacylawsandregulations.IHEs may useexamples

of screeningmethodsfoundinCDC’s GeneralBusinessFAQs.

IHE administratorsandhealthcareproviders shouldimmediatelyseparatestudents,faculty, or

staff withCOVID-19symptoms by providingdistancelearningoptions,isolationrooms indormitoriesor

other housing facilities,andprovidingalternativefoodservicearrangementsfor those who liveon

campus.As partof symptomscreenings,IHEs shouldbepreparedto refersymptomaticindividuals to an

appropriatehealth care providerwho will determinewhenviral testing for SARS-CoV-2is appropriate.

• Testingindividualswith signs or symptomsconsistentwithCOVID-19

• Testingasymptomaticindividualswithrecentknownor suspectedexposureto SARS-CoV-2to

controltransmission

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

13



IHEs can encourageindividualswithsuspectedor confirmedCOVID-19to go to their placeof residence,

a designated isolationhousing location(if living on-campus),or a healthcarefacility dependingonhow

severetheir symptoms are, andfollow CDC guidancefor caringfor oneself.IHEs can also encourage

individualsto watchfor emergency symptoms andseek emergency medicalcare if these symptoms

occur.

Testingasymptomaticindividualswithrecentknownor suspectedexposureto a personwithCOVID-

19

Testingis recommendedfor allclosecontactsof personsdiagnosedwithCOVID-19:

Insomesettings,broadertesting,beyondclose contacts,is recommendedas a partof a strategyto

controltransmissionof SARS-CoV-2:

Testingasymptomaticindividualswithoutknownexposureto a personwithCOVID-19

Testing of all students, faculty and staff for COVID-19 beforeallowing campus entry (entry testing) has

not been systematically studied. It is unknown if entry testing in IHEs provides any additional reduction

in person-to-person transmission of the virus beyond what would be expected with implementation of

other infection preventive measures (e.g., social distancing, cloth face covering, hand washing,

enhanced cleaning and disinfection). Therefore, CDC does not recommend entry testing of all returning

students, faculty, and staff.

• Because of the potential for asymptomatic and/or pre-symptomatic transmission, it is important

that contacts of individuals diagnosed with COVID-19 be quickly identified and tested. Feasibility

of identifying and testing close contacts will likely vary by IHE and their local context.

• Additionally, in accordance with stateand local laws and regulations,IHEs should work with

localhealthofficials to inform those who have hadclose contact with a persondiagnosedwith

COVID-19 to wear cloth face coverings if they are able,quarantine in their living quarters or a

designated housing location, and self-monitor for symptoms for 14 days.

• InIHEs,residencehalls,laboratoryfacilities,andlectureroomsmaybesettingswith the

potentialfor rapidand pervasivespreadof SARS-CoV-2.

• Expandedtesting might includetestingof allpeoplewho were inproximity of an individual

confirmed to haveCOVID-19(e.g.,thosewho shared communalspaces or bathrooms),or

testingall individualswithina shared setting (e.g.,testing all residentson a floor or anentire

residencehall). Testing in thesesituationscan be helpfulbecauseinhighdensity settingsit can

beparticularlychallenging to accurately identifyeveryonewho hadclosecontactwithan

individualconfirmed to haveCOVID-19.Forexample,students who do not knoweachother

couldpotentiallybe closecontacts if they arebothina shared communalspace.

• IHEs might want to consider that some people are at increasedrisk of severe illness from COVID-

19. Everyone is at risk for getting COVID-19 if they are exposed to the virus, but some people are

more likely than others to become severely ill,which means that they may require

hospitalization,intensivecare, or a ventilator to help them breathe,or they may even die.

• Decisions about the level of risk and the scope of testing should be made in coordination with

state, territorial, Tribal, and local health officials.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

14



However, some IHEs are planningto adopt and implement this testing approach. IHEs planning for this

testing approachshould take into account the following:

• Specific features of their campus. For example,residentialcollege communitiesthat do not have
frequent interactionwith surroundingcommunities might have less potentialexposure to
COVID-19 than an IHE campus with commuter students or campuses where students engage
frequently and/or livewithin the community.

Inareas with moderateto substantialcommunity transmission where resources allow, localhealth
officials and IHEs may consider testing some or all asymptomaticstudents,faculty, and staff who have
no knownexposure(e.g.,students incongregatehousing such as residencehalls) to identifyoutbreaks
and informcontrolmeasures.

Moreresources for Institutionsof HigherEducation:

• Acceptabilityof this testingapproachamongstudents,their families,facultyandstaff.

• Limited availability of dedicated resources and the logistics needed to conduct broad testing

among students, faculty, and staff in IHE settings. Examples of resources include trained staff to

conduct tests, personal protective equipment, and physical space for conducting testing safely

and ensuring privacy.

• Limitedusefulnessof a singleadministrationof testing.Singleadministrationcouldmisscases in

the early stages of infectionor subsequentexposuresresultingintransmission,andwouldonly

provideCOVID-19status for individualsat that specificpointintime.

• For more information on facility-wide testing for asymptomatic individuals, please see

the Standardized procedure for broad-based testing for SARS-CoV-2.

• For additional considerations for reducing COVID-19 spread in IHEs, see the Considerations for

Institutions of Higher Education.

• ForinformationaboutdailylifeandcopingduringCOVID-19for students,faculty,andstaff:

• Communities, Schools, Workplaces,and Events: Information for Where You Live,Work, Learn,

and Play

o Encourageemployees and students to take breaks from watching, reading, or listening

to news stories, includingsocial media if they are feeling overwhelmedor distressed.

o Promoteemployees and students eating healthy,exercising,getting sleep and finding

time to unwind.

o Encourageemployees and students to talk with people they trust about their concerns

and how they are feeling.

o Consider postingsignages for the nationaldistress hotline: 1-800-985-5990,or text

TalkWithUs to 66746

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

15



Talking Points

K-12
Summary:

Manystates havepostedschool(K-12)reopeningand mitigationplans ontheweb ina variety of
formats.Mostallow for district-specificplans,thoughrequirementsdistrictsmust followareoutlined.

Somestates havedecidedononly in-personor hybrid(in-personand virtualoptions);others havenot
decidedyet or are leavingthosedecisionsupto localeducationalagencies.Overall,guidanceis in line

withCDCguidelines,andCDCwas directlyreferencedinmost of theplans reviewed.Plans include
informationonreducedclass andeventsizes;encouragementor requirementof theuseof clothface

coverings;increasedcleaningand disinfection;hygiene(many saidthey wouldprovidefiveopportunities
for handwashinga day);modificationsof flowof foot trafficto encouragesocialdistancing;contact
tracingprograms;andnutrition,social,andemotionalsupportfor students,staff,and families.Themost

detailedplans reviewedwerefrom Florida,Oregon,Oklahoma,andMinnesota.

Institutionsof Higher Education (IHE)

Many Institutions of Higher Education(IHE) have posted their reopeningand mitigationplans online.
While somevariation in plans exist among the colleges and universities, overall, they are in line with
CDC guidelines, and CDC was directly referencedinsome of the plans reviewed.Plans include
informationon compressed fall semesters; hybridcourse instruction(both in person and virtual
options); reducedclass and event sizes; encouragement or requirement of the use of cloth face
coverings; screening; increasedcleaning and disinfection; promotinghandhygiene;modificationsof
floor layouts and flow of foot traffic to encourage social distancing; and contact tracing programs.

The most detailed plans reviewedwere from historically black colleges (HBUs) (HamptonUniversity,
LincolnUniversity);community colleges (Arizona Western College, Community College of Baltimore
County,Clark State Community College), public universities (Pennsylvania State University,Temple
University, University of Kentucky,Florida InternationalUniversity); private universities (Emory
University, Vanderbilt University,Johns Hopkins University,Yale University,SouthernMethodist
University); and tribal institutions (Institutes of American IndianArts).

• Noticeablegaps are identifiedintheseplans.Whilemany jurisdictionsanddistrictsmention

symptomscreening,very few includeinformationas to the responseor courseof actionthey
wouldtake if student/faculty/staffare foundto havesymptoms,nor havethey clearly identified

whichsymptomsthey will includeintheir screening. Inaddition,few plans includeinformation
regardingschoolclosurein theeventof positivetests in the schoolcommunity.Manydistricts
includeplaceholderlanguagenotingthat they willdevelopa plan.CDC has a focusedteam

within the responseworking to ensurethat districts,administrators,and families haveaccess to
the resourcesandguidancethey needto address thesegaps.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

16



1)Themes/commonpractices

2) Innovations

• Cloth FaceCoveringswill berequiredamong all staff andstudents at many IHEsincluding

historicallyblack colleges (HBUs),communitycolleges,publicuniversities,privateuniversities,

andtribal institutions(HamptonUniversity,Arizona WesternCollege,TempleUniversity,
VanderbiltUniversity,Institutesof AmericanIndianArts).

• HybridCourseInstructionincludingbothin personandvirtualoptions will be commonat many

IHEs includingHBUs,communitycolleges,public,andprivateuniversities(HamptonUniversity,
ArizonaWesternCollege,Florida InternationalUniversity,Emory University,Vanderbilt
University)

• Daily HealthSelf-checkswill berequiredby allstaff andstudents at someIHEs(Vanderbilt
University,Yale University,TempleUniversity)

• MandatoryTesting is includedinreopeningplans for some(private)universities(Emory

University,VanderbiltUniversity)

• CompressedFallSemesterswithout breaks are plannedfor a number of privateand publicIHEs
(Emory University,VanderbiltUniversity,SouthernMethodistUniversity,Universityof Kentucky)

• LimitingResidenceHallCapacity will be anapproachput inplaceby a numberof HBU,public,

andprivateresidentialIHEs (HamptonUniversity,EmoryUniversity,PennsylvaniaState
University).

• ModifiedLayouts inclassrooms,hallways,anddining halls to promotesocial/physicaldistancing

oncampus are a commonpartof manyIHE reopeningplans includingHBUs,community
colleges,publicuniversities,privateuniversities,andtribal institutions(HamptonUniversity,

Clark StateCommunityCollege,FloridaInternationalUniversity,VanderbiltUniversity,Institutes
of AmericanIndianArts)

• EnhancedCleaningand Disinfectionof campusfacilities,includingrestroomsandfrequently

touched surfaces,is a partof many IHEs reopeningplans (CommunityCollegeof Baltimore
County,Florida InternationalUniversity,Emory University,VanderbiltUniversity,Institutesof

AmericanIndianArts)

• ModifiedLayout Approaches:Community Collegeof Baltimorewill bepropping interior doors
openacross campus to minimizetouchpoints andwill be designating“up”and“down”

stairwells to minimizeclose contact.They are also limitingelevatorcapacity to a maximumof 2
peopleat a time.

• ModifiedOperations:VanderbiltUniversitywill expandopportunities for mobileordering and
“grab-and-go”options at campus dining facilities.They are also addingcontactless “tap”

checkouts.

• COVID-19Testing and Treatment:TempleUniversityis creatinga new COVID-19Testing and
Treatmentfacility that is separatefromtheuniversity’snormalhealthservices operations.

• ContactTracing: TempleUniversityis also partneringwith the PhiladelphiaDepartmentof

Public Health to developan internalcontact tracing unit.

• Notifications/Alerts:SouthernMethodistUniversitywill beupdating its COVID-19websitewith
informationas positivecases are identified,andstudents andstaff can signup to receivealerts

when the site is updated.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

17



3) Examplesof ConsistencywithCDCGuidance

• ModifiedLayoutsand SocialDistancing
o Institutesof AmericanIndianArts- Individualofficespaces anddesks cannotbeshared,

andmaximumcapacity willbe reducedfor conferencerooms andcommonareas.
o VanderbiltUniversity-Changes to foot-trafficflow throughoutbuildingsandoncampus

pathways.

• Cloth FaceCoverings

o HamptonUniversityand VanderbiltUniversity:Mandatoryface masks/coveringsfor all
students,faculty, staff andvisitors.

o Universityof Kentucky:Employeesonly mustwear face masks/coveringwhen inpublic
or when the employeemayencounteranotherperson.

o LincolnUniversity:Employeesare encouragedto wear their ownclothface

covering/mask;a clothface coveringwill beprovidedif anemployee/visitordoesnot

haveoneat the pointof entry.

• Screening
o LincolnUniversity:Temperaturescreeningor symptomassessmentof employees;to

ensurecompliancewithprivacy laws,screeningrecordswill notbemaintainedby
departments.

• LimitIn-PersonClass Sizes,Events,and Gatherings

o HamptonUniversity:In-personclass sizes andgatheringswill be reducedto 50%
capacity.Occupancyguidelineswill bepostedfor meetingandconferenceworkspaces.

o Yale:Limitingsize of Yale-hostedmeetingsandevents.

• Telework and VirtualMeetings/Services
o ArizonaWesternUniversity:Departmentswill continueto offer virtualservicesto

students,colleaguesandthe community throughoutthe fall semester andbeyond.
o Institutesof AmericanIndianArts:Meetingsin which socialdistancingcannot be

maintainedwill requirethe useof virtualZoom technology or other web-basedvideo
conferencingtools.

• Closeor ModifyUseof CommunalSpaces

o ArizonaWesternUniversity:Establishinga Car-to-Classroomplanfor students for Fall
2020– noevents,nogatherings,nohangingout in GameRoom,studentloungesor

other gatheringspaces.
o Universityof Kentucky:Break rooms,elevators,lunchroomsor other commonareas

should only beused by oneemployeeat a time,if practical.

• PhysicalBarriersandGuides
o CommunityCollegeof BaltimoreCounty:Floormarkingsare installedto facilitatesocial

distancing.

• EnhancedCleaningand Disinfection
o FloridaInternationalUniversity,Institutesof American IndianArts, VanderbiltUniversity

andCommunityCollegeof BaltimoreCounty: Increasedfrequency of cleaningof
commonareas andhightouchpoints,suchas light switches,phones,door handles,

railings,etc.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

18



4)DifferencesAcross theDifferentCategories/Typesof IHEs

IHEAthletics

• Directlyimpactsa relativelysmallnumber of U.S. public,but is high visibility andaffectsmuchof
the public indirectlygiven the stronginterest incollegeathletics among a broad swathof the
public.

• Very complicatedto manageCOVID-19risk; guidancefor collegeathletics wouldcomprisea
combinationof previouslydevelopedsets of guidance:

o Youthsports:Offers guidancewith respectto socialdistancing,reducinguseof shared
objects (e.g.,bats and balls),reducingtravel for competitions.

o Gatheringsand events: Offers guidancewith respectto socialdistancing,limitingcrowd
size,signs encouraginghygiene,cleaning/disinfection/ventilation,andfoodservice.

o Travel: Applicableto air andbus travelby teamsto awaycompetitions.
o Institutionsof highereducation:Applicableas many athletes liveincongregatesettings,

sometimes living withnon-athletesandsometimes livingexclusively withother athletes;

inaddition,many athleticprogramsoffer foodserviceseparatefromthoseavailableto
non-athletes.

o Healthcareproviders:Applicableas many collegeathleticdepartmentsmanage
healthcareneeds of their athletes.

• Key questions that havebeenraised:
o Howshould teamsmanagea positivecase when most/allof the teamcouldbe

considereda closecontact? Shouldthe teamquarantinefor 14days andforfeitallof
thosecompetitions?

o Cancertainsports(e.g.,basketball,wrestling)ever besafe for practiceor competition
when very close contact is inherent to the sportandsocialdistancing is not possible?

• Promoting HandHygiene

o Institutes of American IndianArts and Florida InternationalUniversity:Hand hygiene is
required—frequentwashing with soap and water or usinghandsanitizer.

• PostingSigns Promoting Everyday Protective Measures

o Institutes of American IndianArts: Useof signage and other communications to remind
students, faculty, and staff regarding the utmost importanceof social distancing, hand

hygiene, and respiratory etiquette.

• Staff Training
o SouthernMethodistUniversity:All employees returning to work completed a “COVID-19

Return-to-Work Training” before returning to campus.

o Mandatory Testing was only mentioned in the reopening plans of private universities (Hampton

University, Emory University, Vanderbilt University)

o Compressed Fall Semesters without breaks are planned only for residential universities and not

mentioned for community colleges or tribal institutions (Emory University, Vanderbilt

University, Southern Methodist University, University of Kentucky)

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

19



o Is it safe for at leastsomefans to attendcompetitions? Somerevenue-generating

sportsareconsideringlimitedattendanceby fans this fall; CDC guidancefor gatherings

andevents canbe helpful.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

20



School Reopening Plans

Examples of K-12 Reopening and Mitigation Plans for 2020
Summary:

Many states have posted school (K-12) reopeningand mitigationplans on the web ina variety of

formats. Most allow for district-specific plans, though requirements districts must follow are outlined.
Some states have decided on only in-personor hybrid (in-personand virtual options); others have not

decided yet or are leaving those decisions up to local educational agencies. Overall, guidance is in line
with CDC guidelines,and CDC was directly referenced in most of the plans reviewed.Plans include

informationon reducedclass and event sizes; encouragement or requirement of the use of cloth face
coverings; increased cleaning and disinfection; hygiene (many said they would provide five opportunities

for hand washing a day); modifications of flow of foot traffic to encourage social distancing; contact
tracing programs; and nutrition, social, and emotional support for students, staff, and families. The most
detailed plans reviewedwere from Florida, Oregon, Oklahoma,and Minnesota.

Noticeable gaps are identified in these plans. While many jurisdictions and districts mention symptom

screening, very few include information as to the responseor course of action they would take if

student/faculty/staff are found to have symptoms, nor have they clearly identified which symptoms

they will include in their screening. In addition, few plans include information regarding school closure

in the event of positive tests in the school community. Many districts include placeholder language

noting that they will develop a plan. CDC has a focused team within the response working to ensure that

districts, administrators, and families have access to the resources and guidance they need to address

these gaps.

Mapof State-by-StateSchoolRe-entryGuidanceandResources:

https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1BDwGDnRuKr6XNPkhckgK_qoxIaaWaewoy5YCj3hzX

mE/edit#slide=id.p.

Alabama

• The Alabama StateDepartmentof Educationhas developeda roadmap for reopeningschools,

includinga roadmapfor parents.

• Alabama has investedina newcloud-basedlearningmanagementsystemandcurriculumfor
schools.

• Virtual learningwill bean optionfor the upcoming(2020-2021)schoolyear; parents who are
concernedaboutCovid-19becauseof the healthof their childor a family membercan choose
virtual learning.

• The state is working withschooldistricts to assess ways schools can increasesocialdistancing.

• InvestinginWIFI for buses

• ADPHwill continuecontact tracing.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

21



FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

Statehas encouraged school districts to start later

Extracurricular activitieswill look different with schools and teachers to figure out

how extra and cocurricular activities can bedeliveredmore safely.

Source: https://www.alsde.edu/covid-19

Alaska

Alaska has developed a Smart Start 2020' for K - 12 Schools Restart and Reentry Framework
Guidance for the 2020-2021 SchoolYear

Using this framework , the Department ofHealth and Social Services will define and establish the

parameters for how schools can safely operate in a low ,medium , and high risk environment.

With thesupport ofDepartmentofEducation and Early Development, districts and schoolswill

then build modular plans for how they willdeliver education under each of these environments
- focusing on three primary areas: ( 1) the conditions for learning, (2) the continuity of learning,
and (3) the capacities for learning.

Low Risk Medium Risk High

Conditions for Learning
protocols

Parent Engagement
Food service

Transportation

EmotionalNeeds

Attendance/ Engagement
CommunityServices

Continuityof Learning
SchoolSchedules

andSequenceofCurriculum
DeliveryMethods
Measurement

CapacitiesforLearning
Connectivity

Grants
Student Activities
Student Travel of

Illustrationof the frameworkdistrictsandschoolswilluse to plan for thedeliveryofeducation. Listedunder eachprimaryarea are
exampletopicsschoolsanddistrictswillneed to addressin theirplans.

Source:https://education.alaska.gov/news/COVID
19 /Alaska % 20Smart% 20Start % 202020 % 20Framework % 20Guidance.pdf

Arkansas' Blytheville SchoolDistrict, Blytheville, AR

Plan presents two learningenvironment options: for 2020 - 2021SchoolYear - August 11th start

date

Option 1 - Traditional Schoolon Campus - regularschoolday (adhering to ADH
guidance) plans are to have asnormala day aspossible while following safety

standards; digitallearningwillbe incorporated into day-to - day instruction ; classrooms
will be arranged to provide socialdistancing as feasible and practical; concurrent credit

courses through ANC are included in the traditionalapproach

Option 2 - Full-time Free VirtualAcademy - students choose to learn remotely from

homefull timeusing digital curriculum in the Blytheville PublicSchools VirtualAcademy

(BPSVA); for students not comfortable returningto onsite instruction; parents can sign

22



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

up for this option and commit to a minimum of a semester ; district provides the

Chromebook; on-campus or extracurricular activity participation on a case-by-case

basis; the application willbe posted on thedistrict website and later in this document;

an orientation willbeconducted prior to the start of school

Source: https://www.blythevilleschools.com/article/263789?org=bsd

Connecticut

Localeducationalagenciesshould plan to have all students, in all districts, return to

schoolhousesfor full-timeinstruction at thebeginning of2020-2021, so long aspublic health
data continues to support thismodel. This modelwill be supported with moreintensive

mitigation strategies and specificmonitoring, containmentand class cancellation plans

As Connecticutschoolsplan to reopen, theguidanceand considerationsoutlined in this

documentare groundedin six guiding principles:

1.Safeguarding the health & safety of students and staff ;

2.Allowingallstudents the opportunityto return into theclassroomsfull time

starting in the fall;

3.Monitoring the schoolpopulationsand, whennecessary, potentially

cancelling classes in the future to appropriately contain COVID- 19 spread ;

4.Emphasizingequity, access, and support to thestudentsand communities
whoare emergingfrom this historicdisruption;

5.Fosteringstrong two-way communication with partners such as families,

educators and staff; and

6.Factoring into decisions aboutreopening the challengesto the physicalsafety

and social-emotionalwell-being of our studentswhen they are notin school.

Main operationalconsiderations:

Cohorting: Emphasize grouping studentsby the same class/ group ofstudents and
teacher (into a cohort) so each team functions independently asmuch aspossible.

Consider thismethodology by gradelevels. Placingstudents in cohorts is strongly
encouraged for grades K - , and encouraged where feasible for grades 9-12 .

Transportation: LocalEducational Agencies ( plan forbuses to operate close

to capacity with heightenedhealth and safety protocols, including requiring all students

and operatorswear face coverings. Plansmust be developed to activate increased social

distancing protocols basedupon community spread .

Social Distancing and Facilities: Review building space and reconfigure available

classroom space , such as gymnasiums and auditoriums, to maximize social distancing ,

consistent with public health guidelines in place at that time.

23



FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

Face Coverings: Allstaff and studentswill be expected to wear a protective face

covering or face mask that completely covers the nose andmouth when insidethe

schoolbuilding, except for certain exceptions including when teachers are providing

instruction

Source: https://portal.ct.gov/-/media/SDE/COVID-19/Reopening Executive Summary.pdf

Florida

ReopeningFlorida'sSchools andthe CARES Act Plan

Outlineof Plan:

Part 1: This plan providesdiverseinsightson theconnectionbetween schools and

the economyandtheir subsequentimpactsonachievementgaps.

Part 2: Provides health and instructional recommendations for reopening Florida's
schools , aligned to the executive direction of Florida Governor Ron DeSantis , the Re
Open Florida Task Force's Safe. Smart. Step-by-Step Plan, the Florida Department of
Health (FDOH ) and CDC. Child care (early learning) programs, K -12 schools and
postsecondary institutions should use this document as points to consider and
implement with local context, and note that health relatedmitigationsmay need to
adjust as Florida learns more about the impacts ofCOVID -19.

Examples of recommendationsfrom this section :

. Recommendationsto reduce risks during the schoolday:

As feasible , keep groups of students together throughout

theday to minimize the number of people in close contact
with each person.

As feasible, convert cafeterias, libraries, gymnasiums,
auditoriums, outdoorareasinto classroom space.

Explore allowing students to eatmeals in traditional

classroom space or outdoors .

Move nonessential furniture and equipment outof
classrooms to increase distance between students and turn

desks the same direction .

Maintain a maximum distance between desks as possible ,

even ifnot able to achieve 6 feet and avoid sharing of

textbooks , supplies and toys.

Consider setting up a secondary clinic in schools, exclusively

for students showing symptomsof COVID - 19.

24



FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

Recommendationsto Reduce Risks at FrontDoor:

Create a crisis response team at the district, school or

program level, as applicable .

Post a crisisplan andresponsecheck listwherethey are

easily accessible.

Consider screening students, employees and visitors

through visual signage, verbal questions or visual

assessments .

As feasible and while maintaining the goalof getting

students on campus every day, explore staggered
schedules, start and end times to limit crowds.

CDC's guidanceoncloth face coverings is quoted

Reopening is a

LocallyDriven
Decision

DimmerSwitch

(Step-by-Step )

Approach

Create a Local
Safe SchoolsPlan

to Maintain In
Person Learning

EstablishSupports
andPartnerships

in Communitiesto

Make Local

Decisions

Create a

Framework for

LocalPlanningby
a Crisis

Response Team

Respondingto a confirmedcase: includeCDC's Decision Tree

Part 3: This plan provides the Florida DepartmentofEducation's (FDOE)

implementation plan for the federalCoronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security (CARES) Act's education and child carerelatedcomponents

Part4 : Thisplan holdsadequatereservefundsback for needsthatmay

emerge closerto and duringthe2020-2021academic year.

Source:

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/19861/urlt/FLDOEReopeningCARESAct.pdf

Georgia , Gwinnett County Public Schools (GCPS)

GCPSispreparing to start the 2020-21schoolyear as plannedon August 5.

Aspart of theplanning process, they gathered feedback from families about their preferredway
to return to school. A survey completed in mid -June showed that 43% ofparents prefer a return
to in -person instruction; 34 % prefer 100 % digitallearning; and 23% prefer an option that
combines in -person instruction with digital learning.

25



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

They determined that themost prudent course of action is to open the schoolyearwith in
person instruction, alongwith an option for digital learning, for students in grades K -12.
For immediate planning purposes, they willbeasking all families to tell us which option they
prefer for each of their children :

1. In- personinstruction attheir child's school; or

2. Digitallearning fortheir child athome.

Studentswill attendschoolbasedon the option chosen for allof firstsemester ( through

December). A changemaybemadeafterthe first nineweeks, ifitisneededto better serve the
student.

Detailson In -Person Option:

Families should self -screen at home. Itisrecommended that families take temperatures

daily before going to school. Anyone with a fever of 100.4 F or higher should not go to a

school site . Students and adults also should screen themselves for respiratory symptoms

such as cough andshortness of breath prior to coming to school each day.

Periodicscreenings, includingrandom temperaturechecks, willbe conducted. Studentsand

staffwith COVID- 19 symptomsora temperature of 100.4+willbeisolated immediatelyand
senthome.

Allstudents and employeesmust stay homeifthey have COVID -19 symptoms, tested

positive, or had close contactwith a person with COVID- 19 within the last 14 days .

For those who are ill, health dept guidelines will be followed for return to school/ work .

Frequenthandwashing encouraged , with breaks for scheduled handwashing at ES level.We

also will recommend bringing hand sanitizer from home.

Cleaning/ disinfecting of buildings, surfaces, and high-touch objects will be done more

frequently . Ventilation systemswillbemonitored for proper operation .

Buseswillbecleaned/disinfected aftermorning/ afternoon routes.

Theuse ofmasks can be a challenge for some children and adults, so itwillnotbe required.

However, the wearingofmaskswillbe encouraged for thosewho can.

Schoolswill limit visitors;serve meals in classrooms;stagger lunch,playground,and class
change schedules;andhold meetings /events virtually as possible.
Where feasible, roomswillbe arranged with student desks facing the same direction and
students seated at tables will sit on the same side.

Students will be discouraged from sharing books, materials , supplies , or equipment,

including devices and equipment used for athletics / PE.

Cleaning/ disinfectingprotocolswillbe usedin computerlabs,mediacenters, andathletic
facilities.



FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

Cafeteriakeypadswillbereplacedwith a barcodescanningsystem .

Waterfountainswillbeclosed. Studentswillbe encouragedto bringwaterfrom

home.

Detailson DigitalLearningOption

The expectations for studentsparticipating in digitallearning in the fall of 2020 willbe
the same as for those attending in-school in termsof attendance, grading, and

accountability.

Forthemostpart, thedigitallearning day will follow thesameoperationalhoursas the

in-person school day.

For those, who choose digitallearning, students will need access to reliable internet and

devices. Sharing a device is not recommended as multiple students in a family would

“ attend digital lessons at the same timeduring the school day.

Duringthe spring,welearned thatparentinvolvementis a key to successfuldigital

learningas studentsmayneedparentalassistanceduring thedigitallearningschoolday.

Source:https://publish.gwinnett.k12.ga.us/gcps/home/public/about/content/covid
19/letters

Executive Order 2020-40 , filed on June 4 , 2020 , allowed schools to reopen for in- person
instruction in Phase 3 .

In-person instruction is strongly encouraged in Phase 4 ; however, it is criticalto note that this

does not signify a return to pre-pandemic operations. Appropriate socialdistancing, face

coverings, enhanced sanitationmeasures, and other accommodations willbenecessary to
ensure the safety ofstudents, staff, and their families .

During Phase 4 , IDPH guidelines will:

Requireuseofappropriate personalprotective equipment (PPE) , including face

coverings;

Prohibitmorethan 50 individualsfrom gatheringin one space

Require social distancingbe observed, asmuch as possible

Require that schools conduct symptom screenings and temperature checksor require

that individuals self -certify thatthey are free of symptomsbefore entering school

buildings; and

Requirean increase in schoolwide cleaning and disinfection.

27



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Allpublic andnonpublic schools in Illinois serving prekindergartenthrough 12th grade

studentsmust follow theseguidelines.

Schools anddistricts should also preparefor a returnto remoteinstruction in the event

of a resurgenceofthevirusor a secondwave ofit in the fall

PA 101-0643 requires that school districts a Remote and Blended Remote
Learning DayPlan approved by thedistrict superintendent.” Furthermore, the
legislation stipulates that Remote Learning Day or Blended Remote Learning Daymay
be metthrough a district's implementation ofan e -learningprogram under Section 10
20.56 .

ISBE strongly encourages schools and districts to provide in -person instruction for all

students, especially those under the ageof 13, to avoid the need for child care and

exposure to additional individuals

Schools and districts arestrongly encouraged to provide in - person instruction to
students. However, schools and districts that are unable to adhere to IDPH

requirements may choose to implement Blended Remote LearningDays, which are

authorized by PA 101-0643.

Calendar considerations for local districts need to be thorough and thoughtful. Districts

may consider amending school calendars to include earlier start dates so the first term

can becompleted by the end ofNovember in the event there is a second wave of the
virus .

To help studentscomply with socialdistancing asmuch as possible, consider revising

activitiesthat combine classesor gradelevelsor requiretravelto otherbuildings.

Consider synchronouslybroadcastingin - class instructiontomultipleroomsto allow

students to spread out.

Implementahome-room stay, meaningthe teachersrotate insteadof thestudents.

Consider moving class activities outdoors if weather and safety considerations permit.

Districts should proactively prepare staff and students to prevent the spread of COVID
19 or any other infectious disease .
All employees should be trained on health and safetyprotocols related to COVID -19

prior to resuming in -person instruction. Considerreferring to recommendations and
strategies from the CDC: Guidance for Businesses and Employers and Considerations for

Schools for guidance. Sections of this guidance were previously published in Part 2 and

may be updated .

All individuals in schoolbuildings, including allpublic andnonpublic schools that serve

students in prekindergarten through grade 12,must wear face coverings at all times
unlessthey are younger than 2 years ofage; have trouble breathing; or are unconscious,

incapacitated,orotherwise unable to remove the cover without assistance. Face
coveringsmustbe worn at all times in schoolbuildingseven when socialdistancing is

28



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

maintained. Face coverings do notneed to beworn outside ifsocial distance is

maintained.

Schools anddistrictsmust conducttemperature and symptom screeningsorrequireself
certification andverification forallstaff, students, andvisitors enteringschoolbuildings.

Schools should consider the number of students and adults in the cafeteria during each

breakfast and lunch period and ensure that it does not exceed that maximum gathering

size per the Restore Illinois plan (no more than 10 individuals during Phase 3 and no

more than 50 individuals duringPhase 4, if possible)

Source: https://www.isbe.net/Documents/Part-3-Transition-Planning-Phase-4.pdf

Kentucky :

Kentucky released Guidance on Safety Expectations and Best Practices for Kentucky Schools (K
12)

Practices listed in this document are divided into safety expectations thatmustbe

implementedby schools, as determined by the Kentucky Departmentfor Public Health . Best

practices are additionalstrategies that schoolsmay choose to follow in order to optimize
thesafety ofstudents and staff.

Safety expectations are fully explained in this guide (only a few examples of what is included
in the guide are below )

Social Distancing :

Stagger arrivaland dismissaltimes.

Increasespacebetween studentsby rearrangingseatingtomaximizespace
betweenstudentsto be 6 feetor greater.

If the physical space in the school does notallow for spacing students ' desks

6 feet apart, space desks as far away as possible and requiremasks at all

times in that classroom for students and staff. All desks should be arranged
so students seats face the samedirection

Modelcreatingspacebetween students/ staffand avoid unnecessary

contactormovementwithin thepersonalspace of6 feet

Cloth FaceCoverings

Students who are enrolled in first grade and above and staff should be

required to wear a cloth face covering , unlessmedicallywaivered.Masks

can belowered duringclassroom time ifall students and staff are seated 6

feet apart andno personsarewalking inside the classroom .

SchoolHealth Policies, andPersonalProtective Equipment

29



Los Angeles County, California

• Source:https://education.ky.gov/comm/Documents/Safety%20Expectations_FINAL%20DOC.

pdf

• A Planning Framework was created by local educational agency leaders (LEAs) to work with

their teams to plan for the 2020-2021 school year.

• LEAs may adaptthis frameworkas needed

• Framework Vision: Throughout the 2020-21school year, our communities are healthy and

connected,and all students are receiving high-quality instructionthat meets their needs

• FrameworkGuidingPrinciples:

o Screeningand SchoolExclusion

o SanitationandEnvironmentalFactors:

o Contact Tracing: Notify local health department of any positive cases of COVID-19

and be prepared to cooperate with the contact tracing investigation with manifests

of bus transportation, classroom cohorts, cafeteria setting charts, etc., that will

allow quick identification of those at high risk of infection from the positive COVID-

19student/staff. Quickly initiating a 14 day quarantine of these at-risk individuals is

our best defense against further spread of the viral illness

o Maintainingcontinuityof instruction

o Keepingstudentsandstaffsafeand healthy

o Ensuringaccessand equityfor allstudents

o Communicating with stakeholders,such as staff, families, bargainingunits and

partners

• Temperature check (touchless thermometer) for all students and staff at

point of school property entry.

• Post signs throughout the school facility encouraging proper hand and

respiratory hygiene practices (coveringcoughs and sneezes).

• Dailycleaningand disinfectionof allschoolfacilities.

• Stagger lunch times and promote social distancing at tables (include

accommodation for students with food allergies). If students eat in the

cafeteria, surfaces must be cleaned and sanitized between cohorts of

diners. Seat assignment and a manifest will be needed to support contact

tracing if the school experiences a positive case of COVID-19.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

30



Massachusetts

• Planning document clearly states goal for this fall: the safe returnof as many students as

possible to in-personschool settings, to maximizelearningand address our students’ holistic
needs.

• Providea clear set of healthand safety requirementsfor in-personlearning this fall, groundedin

themost up-to-datescientific literatureand discussionswith expert medicaladvisors.

• Requiredistricts and schools to preparea reopening plan that addresses three possible learning
models for this fall:

o in-personlearning with new safety requirements,
o a hybridof in-personand remotelearning,

o and the continuationof remotelearning(to ensure continuity of learning throughout
the school year, even if circumstanceschange).

• LA CountyDepartmentof PublicHealthguidelinesshouldbeusedto supportlocalplanning

• LEAs should exercise local control, and engage staff, students, families, professional

associations, and community partners in planning

• Threesectionsof planningframework:

• LEAs shouldselecttheteachingmodel(s)thatbestfit theneedsof theirstudents.

• Source:https://www.lacoe.edu/Home/School-Reopening

o Ensuring flexibility to meet the needs and advocate for all students,while

maintaining fiscal solvency

o Take into account in five primary focus areas: Instruction,Healthand Safety,Social-

EmotionalSupport Systems,Family and Community Engagementand Operations.

o AlignVisionandDirection

o AssessStudent,Staff,andOrganizationalNeeds

o LEA Planning

o Faceto Face: The teacherandthe studentmeetphysically in a set place for a set

time, for eitherone-on-onelearningor ingroupclassroomlessonswithsocial

distancingmeasuresin place,as wellas healthandsafety measures.

o Hybrid:Hybridlearningoccurs both inthe classroom(orotherphysicalspace)

withsocialdistancingmeasuresinplace,as wellas healthand safetymeasures,

andvia distancelearning.

o Distancelearning:Distancelearningoccurs when the learner andinstructor,or

sourceof information,areseparatedby timeanddistanceand thereforecannot

meetina traditionalphysicalclassroomsetting.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

31



o Schoolswill also needa focusedplanfor specialstudentpopulations.Districtsand

schools will be requiredto submit a comprehensive reopeningplanto the Department
of Elementaryand Secondary Education(DESE) inAugust that addresses these three

models.

• The Commonwealthis makingavailable:

o An additional$202 millionfrom theCvRF for a new grant roundto support school
reopening. Of the $202 million,$182 millionwill be formula grants ($225per pupil) and
$20 millionwill be availableat the Commissioner’sdiscretionfor distributionto districts

with unmetneeds. Inaccordancewith federal rules,these funds mustbe spent by
December 30, 2020 for COVID-19relatedexpenses. Funding for the City of Bostonand

PlymouthCounty are separateand in additionto these funds.
o $25 millionavailablefor remotelearning technology grants throughwhich the

Commonwealthwill provide a 100%state matchto districts for their remotelearning
needs.

• Examples of guidance includedindocument:

o Students in grade 2 and above are required to wear a mask/face covering that covers

their nose and mouth.

o Student groups: To minimize the number of students who would potentially be exposed

in the event of a COVID-19 event, to the extent feasible, elementary schools should aim

to keep students in the same group throughout the day and middle and high schools are

encouraged to minimize mixing student groups to the extent feasible. Our initial

requirements and related guidance are as follows:

� Face shields may bean option for those students with medical, behavioral, or

other challenges who are unable to wear masks/face coverings.

� Transparentmasks may be the best optionfor bothteachers and students in
classes for deaf and hardof hearing students.They may also be usefulfor
teachers andyounger students who rely on visual / facial cues.

� Adults, including educators andstaff,are requiredto wear masks/face
coverings.

� Exceptions to mask/facecoveringrequirementsmustbe madefor those for
whom it is not possibledue to medicalconditions,disability impact,or other
healthor safety factors.

� Mask breaks should occur throughout the day.

� Masks/face coverings should be provided by the student/family, but extra
disposable face masks should be made available by the school for students who
need them.

� Masks/face coverings are required to beworn by everyone on the bus during

school bus transportation.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

32



Minnesota

• Cohorts: Schools should divide students into small groups that remain with each

other throughout the day, with smaller cohort sizes preferred. Schools should look
for ways to isolatecohorts of students and prevent inter-group contact to the
extent feasible.

• Capacity: There are no requiredmaximums on cohort or group sizes, so long as
schools adhere to the physical distancing requirements above.

• Source: http://www.doe.mass.edu/covid19/

• School and district administrators are directed to develop three contingency plans to prepare

for the 2020-21 school year using the three scenarios described below:

o Scenario 1: In-person learning for all students. In this planning scenario, schools should

create as much space between students and teachers as is feasible during the day, but

will not be held strictly to enforcing 6 feet of social distancing during primary

instructional time in the classroom. Activities and extracurricular programming should

continue to follow the COVID-19 Prevention Guidance for Youth, Student, and Child

Care Programs. This scenario may be implemented if state COVID-19 metrics continue to

stabilize and/or improve. All requirements in this guidance apply to scenario 1.

o Scenario2: Hybridmodelwith strict social distancing and capacity limits.Inthis planning

scenario,schools must limit theoverall number of people inschool facilities and on
transportation vehicles to 50% maximumoccupancy.Sufficient social distancingwith at

least 6 feet betweenpeoplemust occur at all times. If distancing cannot be achievedin
a space or on a transportationvehicle, the number of occupants must be reduced.

Schools must also includeplans for contactless pick-up and/or delivery of meals and
school materials for days that students and staff are not in the schoolbuilding,as well as

implementationof a school-agecare programfor criticalworkers.This scenario may be
implemented if COVID-19metrics worsen at the local,regional,or statewide level.

Scenario 2 may also be implementedwithin a school if they experienceclusters of cases
within a classroomor the school.All requirements in this guidance apply to scenario 2,

with additionalrequirements notedinthe SocialDistancingand Minimizing Exposure
sectionnotedfor scenario 2 only.

o Scenario 3: Distance learning only. This scenario may be implemented if local, regional,

or statewide COVID-19 metrics worsen significantly enough to require the suspension of

in-person learning. The requirements in this guidance regarding in-person protections

would not apply to the general school community, as students and staff would be

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

33



Missouri, Jennings School District, Jennings, MO

• Source:https://www.health.state.mn.us/diseases/coronavirus/schools/k12planguide.pdf

• Examplesof actionsdescribedinJSD EssentialActionsfor COVID-19SchoolSafety & Wellbeing

• FromCDCGuidelines:

o Governor Walz’s Office, inconsultation with the Minnesota Department of Health

(MDH) and Minnesota Department of Education (MDE),will determine and announce

the scenario model under which schools may reopen for the 2020-21school year based

on state COVID19 metrics by the week of July 27. Future decisions to increase or loosen

restrictions will be madeif COVID-19 metrics at the local, regional, or state level worsen

or improve. Schools may choose to implement strategies that are more restrictive than

the scenario established by the state, but may not choose to implement plans for a

scenario that is less restrictive.

o This guidance document is organized into sections by topic, and within each section the
planning elements are further separated into requiredand recommendedpractices for

each planning scenario. Requiredhealthpractices must be implementedby all
Minnesota public schools.These practices are foundational to minimizing the risks of

exposure to COVID-19 for students,staff, and families. These practices are considered
theminimumlevelof implementation,and schools may not be less restrictive.

Recommendedhealthpractices are additionalstrategies that schools may choose to use
to minimize the spread of COVID-19.MDH and MDE recognizethere are diverse learning

environments that will require teams to use thoughtful strategies when applying
guidance to meet the healthand safety needs of all students and staff.Not all

recommendedpractices will be possible inall settings,and therefore should be tailored
as appropriate.

o Minimally face covers are available for: health room staff and any person exhibiting

symptoms

o No sharing of any items or supplies, all belongings in individual cubbies, locks, labeled
containers

o No sharing of electronic devices, toys, games, learning aids

o Desks 6 feet apart, all facing the same way in classrooms. 30 square feet space per

person is our JSD goal.

o Distance on school buses – 1 child or family per seat, skip rows and start with first

student to go to last seat and the driver

utilizingdistance learningand would not be gathering ingroups on school grounds.

However, schools may be open to provide emergency child care or other functions.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

34



• School activity programming:

o Start and drop off time at 7:45 am, conduct breakfast in classrooms. Have one waiting
room or space for early arrivers

o Use new online enrollment, virtual parent meetings as much as possible, or one-on-one,
small-group, and outdoors meetings

o Parents/Guardians will drop off & pick up children at the main entry

o Staff will escort children upon pick up to wash hands and deliver the child to their
assigned group and counselor for the week

o Large group activities will not be conducted

o Maximize activities promoting natural distancing, such as parallel play or competition;
individual projects; physical activities with no shared equipment, like foot races, hiking,
treasure hunts,etc.

o Maximize outdoor activities over indoor activities

o Field trips will not occur; camps can utilize guest speakers (who are also wellness
checked) and virtual field trips

o Follow the sports and band guidance -- NFHS Guidelines at the secondary level

o Reinforce concepts around the hand and respiratory hygiene for both staff and children,
such as covering your cough, washing your hands regularly, and keeping your hands
away from your face and mouth

o Staff should wear face coverings when distancing from children is difficult

o Class size 20 people max per 600 sq ft room or classrooms large enough for 30 sq
ft/person per room 6 feet separation. Minimize time standing

o Separate children into smaller groups with dedicated staff

o Useplexiglassfor teacherdesk partitionswhereveryou cannotspace6ftapart

o One-way routes inhallways; tapeon sidewalks and walls to keep kids 6thapart

o No communalshared spaces – cafeterias, playgrounds per class and with cleaningwith
each use

o Physicalbarriers or screens betweensinks inbathrooms and touchless equipment

o Only pre-packages boxes or bags of food instead of cafeteria food; kids eat in

classrooms

o No field trips, assemblies, or external organizations in the school. Limit volunteers and

visitors unless with special permission

o Same children stay with the same staff all day, little to no switching groups or classes

o Stagger arrival and departure times for students to limit crowds to less than 50 students
at any time.

o Clean and disinfect high-touch places throughout the day and hand washing 5 times a
day

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

35



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Provide5 opportunitieseveryday for hand-washing/ sanitizingfor staff andchildren,

includingbefore/aftermeals/ bathroom
PDF

JSD_EssentialActions

for COVID - 19 School
Source:

36



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

New Mexico

New Mexico will take a phased approach to reentering schools .

BeginningAugust 3, all schools in the state willbeable to start the schoolyear utilizing a hybrid

modelof instruction.

Under a hybrid model, thenumberof studentspresentin the building at any given time

willbe limitedin order to ensure that six feet of socialdistancingcan bemaintainedat
all times.

Students willalternatebetween in -person instruction at the schoolbuilding and online

instruction when at home.

The state's goal is to move allschools into a full school schedule as soon as it can be safely

accomplished

The state will assess the impact of school reentry on the rate of spread of the virus statewide in

each ofthe 5 regions.

NMPED'sReentryGuidanceprovidesconsiderations, recommendations, andbest practices to

encouragea safe and successfulschoolyear. The eightminimum requirementsfor reentryare:

1. All districts andschools acrossthe state willbeable to operatestrictly accordingto

hybrid guidelines. The DepartmentofHealth and MedicalAdvisory Team willregularly
assess ratesof the spread of COVID - 19. Districtsand schoolswill then follow the

appropriate guidelinesbased on the designated safe reentry category .

2. Schools must participate in a surveillance and rapid response testing program for all

staff.

3. Schools must adhere to the socialdistancing requirements of their designated category .

4. Schools should avoid large group gatherings.

5. Face coverings are required for all students and staff exceptwhile eating, drinking and

exercising, with limitedexceptionsfor studentsorstaffwho havemedicalreasonsfor

notbeingable to wear a mask orface shield.

6. All staffmust be screened on a daily basis, including a temperature check and review of

potentialsymptoms. All sitesmust work with state and localhealth officials to have a

plan for contact tracing. While notrequired, this is also recommended for students.

7. For transportation , all staff and students mustwear face shields ormasks.

i . In addition: A maximum oftwo students may sit together on a bus seat . b .

Schoolsin the yellow category should take all reasonablesteps to limitbus

seats to onestudentto thebestof their ability.

8. Mealsmustbe provided to studentsduring in-personinstruction and remotelearning.

37



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Source: https://webnew.ped.state.nm.us/wp
content/ uploads /2020 /06 / 20NMPED ReentryGuide Hybrid.pdf

North Carolina

LightingourWayForward, Guiding Principlesfor ReopeningSchoolsDocumentoutlinesthat NCPublic
Schoolswill:

consider thesafety andwellnessofstudentsand employees, first and foremost;

respond to theneedsof vulnerable and high needs populations;

be adaptableandflexible with theability to movethroughouttheacademicyear from one

ReopeningPlan to anotherbased on publichealthneeds;

synergizemultiple operationaland academic factors to develop effective plans;

ensure engagementwith all voicesrepresentedin the schools;

maintain consistent communication with students, families and employees to ensure respect and

success within the evolving situation .

PertheNC DepartmentofHealth and Human Services(NCDHHS) StrongSchoolsNCPublicHealth Toolkit

( K -12) from June8 , 2020, allpublic schools are directed to have three plansin place to ensure continuity

ofeducationalservicesshould the state's COVID- 19metricschangesignificantlyrequiringadditional
restrictions to controlthespread ofthedisease. These ReopeningPlanswillbe the foundation for a

successfuland agile academic schoolyear. The three required ReopeningPlansare:

Plan A :Minimal Social Distancing

Plan B: Moderate SocialDistancing

Plan C : Remote Learning Only

COVID - 19 SchoolFacilitiesand Health

REOPENING PLANS Students Precautions *
Teachingand

Learning
Scheduling
Options

REOPENING
PLANA

Open Enhancedhealth

protocols

Traditionalwith
preparationfor

BlendedLearning

Changewithin day,
see below

Minimal Social

Distancing

All students in school

at sametime

SeeNCDHHS

requirementsand

recommendations

REOPENING Open Enhanced health

protocols

Blended Learning
for all

Multiple options,
see

Moderate Social

Distancing
Limit density in SeeNCDHHS
facilitiesto no greater requirementsand
than 50 % maximum recommendations
occupancy

Increased

requirementsin
addition to Plan A

Closed N / AREOPENING
PLANC

RemoteLearning
for all

Fullchangeto
RemoteLearning

RemoteLearning
No students in school All athome

facilities

38



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

The documentoutlinesconsiderationsfor

Reopening Plans and Scheduling

StudentHealth & Safety

EmployeeHealth, Safety & Support

Social & EmotionalLearning & MentalHealth

Operations:

Facilities

SchoolNutrition

Transportation

Before and After -SchoolProgramming

Athletics andExtra-Curricular

Communicating& CombatingMisinformation

StudentLearning

InstructionalPlanning

SpecialPopulations

Sources :https://files.nc.gov/covid/documents/guidance/Strong-Schools-NC-Public-Health
Toolkit.pdf ;https://covid19.ncdhhs.gov/guidance#school

39



Oklahoma

• Return to Learn Framework is organized into four categories essential to planning for the

2020-21school year, with specific actions and considerations in each category. Ingeneral,

the categories are intended to facilitate communication and planning to meet the

challenges of the 2020-21school year, ensuring stakeholders and school districts

understand how to support operations to produce the best outcomes for all, including

community health considerations and conditions for learning.

• The categories are:

� SchoolOperations Integrating public health strategies for the preventionof COVID-
19into schools,examples:

• Evaluateschool cleaning practices - work with facility maintenanceand
administrationregardingthe use of appropriatedisinfectants.

� Academics & GrowthEnsuring continuity of learning

• Adoptpoliciesfor screeningstaff,studentsandvisitorspriortoentry

• Develop a plan in the event that a positive case, or suspected case, is

identified in the school

• Utilize RAVE Panic Button Districts should consider utilizing communication

technology like the RAVE mobile safety panic button. This tool is available to

every public school district in Oklahoma at no cost. RAVE provides one-

touch communication within schools, between campuses, among key

employees and 911and first responders as needed.

• Createa tieredresponsefor potentialschoolclosures

• Determine district use of personal protective equipment (PPE) and how to

secure it

• Prepare for distance-learning options: Districts should develop plans for
delivering instruction in three ways:

o Traditional (on-site delivery) – Districts should plan for the majority
of the schoolyear, and possibly theentire year, to be on-site, as
long as public health officials deem it safe to do so and the school is
prepared with appropriate health and safety measures.

o Distance learning (done remotely but as a continuation of learning
that normally would take place on-site) – Districts should have a
plan to offer distance learning, which can include online learning,
with required student participation for the 2020-21schoolyear.
This learning plan should be deployed in an emergency, such as a
resurgence of COVID-19 or another circumstance inwhich students
cannot receiveon-site instruction in a school building.

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

40



• Source:https://sde.ok.gov/sites/default/files/Return%20to%20Learn%20Oklahoma.pdf

� Whole Child & Family Supports Supporting the whole child, including social and

emotional wellness

� School Personnel Supports for school personnel as they navigate new and emerging

challenges:

• Considerstaggeringthe days studentsare inschoolbuildingsWhenusing

theblendedmodel,districts may considerstaggeringstudentattendancein

buildings.

• Considerservingschoolmealsin classroomsratherthancafeterias

• Consider how to serve meals to students who are not attending school on-

site

• Plan to support social-emotional learning (SEL) School districts can instill

protective factors in their students and subsequently strengthen student

mental health and overall functioning by developing a plan to support

social-emotional learning. The COVID-19 pandemic has affected the well-

being of students and their families, teachers and school staff.

• Establish ongoing reporting protocols and provide ongoing counseling as

needed. Each site within a district should consider forming a mental health

intervention team (MHIT) of certified teachers, certified school counselors,

licensed mental health professionals and school administrators

• Plan for employees who may be exposed or test positive for coronavirus

Employees who test positive for the virus or have a member of their

household test positive for the virus will be required to be isolated and

prohibited from returning to school until meeting CDC requirements for

being around others.

o Blended learning (combines both on-site and distance learning) –

Districts may choose to offer educational services through a

blended model that utilizes both distance learning and on-site

learning for at least a portion of the 2020-21 school year. A blended

model may better accommodate social distancing by partially

reopening school buildings to provide educational services

FOR INTERNALUSE ONLY

41



Oregon

READY SCHOOLS , SAFE LEARNERS GUIDANCE FOR SCHOOL YEAR 2020-21provides statewide

guidance for each school to independently plan for the 2020-21 schoolyear . These
individualplans willnecessarily look different from community to community.

For the 2020-21 schoolyear, each public schoolwill work under the direction of the school

district to develop an Operational Blueprint for Reentry that is tailored to the local context

and informed by localneeds. Sample Blueprints are available in the document .

ByAugust 15 , 2020 or prior to the beginningof the 2020-21schoolyear, whichever is

earlier, every schoolmust consult relevant stakeholders and assemble a planning team to

complete an OperationalBlueprint for Reentry. The finalplan mustbe posted schooland

districtwebsites, and submitted to the Oregon Department ofEducation (ODE .

Public charter schoolsmustmake their Operational Blueprint for Reentry available to the

community on theschool's website and the sponsoring district'swebsite, the planmust be

reviewed by the school's board , submitted to the school's sponsoring district , and submitted
to ODE.

OPERATIONALBLUEPRINTFORREENTRY

5.INSTRUCTION
6.FAMILY AND

COMMUNITY

ENGAGEMENT
1. PUBLIC HEALTH

PROTOCOLS

4.EQUITY

2. FACILITIES AND
SCHOOL

OPERATIONS

88
3.RESPONSE TO

OUTBREAK

7.MENTAL , SOCIAL
AND EMOTIONAL

HEALTH

8.STAFFINGAND

PERSONNEL

READY SCHOOLS, SAFE LEARNERS

Overview OperationalBlueprintforReentry

1. PublicHealth

Protocols

Communicable Disease

ManagementPlan for
COVID - 19

. High-Risk Populations

. PhysicalDistancing
1d. Cohorting
le. PublicHealth

Communication

1f. Entry and Screening

1g. Visitors /Volunteers
1h . Face Coverings, Face Shields,

and Clear PlasticBarriers
. IsolationMeasures

2.Facilities and School

Operations

2a . Enrollment
2b. Attendance

2c . Technology
2d . SchoolSpecific

Functions/ Facility Features
2e. Arrival and Dismissal

2f. Classrooms/ Repurposed

Learning Spaces

, Fields, Recess ,
and Breaks

.MealService/Nutrition

Transportation
Cleaning, Disinfection, and
Ventilation

2k. Health Services

3.Response to
Outbreak

3a. Preventionand Planning
3b. Response
3c and Reentry

42



4. Equity
4a. Principlesin Action

4b. DecisionMakingthatCentersEquity

5.Instruction

InstructionalTime

. InstructionalModels

5c. InstructionalScheduleandAcademicCalendar

. InstructionalConsiderations

5e. SafeguardingStudentOpportunityClause
5f. InstructionalActivitieswith a HigherRisk for DiseaseSpread

6. and

Community

Engagement

Partnershipin Planning
6b. Communication

7.Mental , Social, and

Emotional Health
7a . Planning
7b . Resources and Strategies

8. Staffingand
Personnel

. Supports

PublicHealthTraining
. ProfessionalLearning

Requirementsand recommendationsfor inclusion in blueprintsare describedin the

guidance. Requirementsinclude:

Designatea person at each schoolto establish, implementand enforcephysical

distancingrequirements, consistentwith this guidance and otherguidance from
OHA.

Create a system for maintaining daily logs for each student/ cohort for the purposes

of contact tracing . This system needs to bemade in consultation with a

school/ district nurse or an LPHA official

Establish a minimum of 35 square feet perperson when determiningroom capacity .
Calculate only with usable classroom space, understandingthat desks and room set
up will require use ofall space in thecalculation.

Support physical distancing in all daily activities and instruction , striving to maintain
at least six feetbetween individuals .

Develop a letter or communication to staff to be shared at the start ofon -site
instruction and at periodic intervals explaining infection controlmeasures that are

being implemented to prevent spread of disease

Screen all students and staff for symptoms on entry to bus/ school every day . This

can be done visually and/ or with confirmation from a parent/ caregiver /guardian .

Required Handwashing : All people on campus should beadvised and encouraged to

wash their hands frequently .

Events : Cancel ,modify , or postpone field trips , assemblies , athletic events,

practices, specialperformances , school-wide parentmeetings and other large

gatherings tomeet requirements for physical distancing .

Seating: Rearrangestudentdesks and other seatspacesto atleastsix feetapart;

assign seating so studentsarein thesameseat at all times

Clean , sanitize, anddisinfect frequently touched surfaces ( e.g., playground

equipment, door handles, sink handles, drinking fountains, transport vehicles) and

shared objects (e.g., toys, games, art supplies)between usesmultiple times per day.

43



Maintain clean and disinfected(CDCguidance) environments, including classrooms,

cafeteriasettings, restrooms, andplaygrounds.

Review andapply school's equity stance, principles, and /or commitment .

InstructionalModelSelection : Districts will select an instructionalmodel ormodels

based onmultiple factors including butnotlimited to: localCOVID - status, school

facility capacity, staffing capacity, operational capacity,needsofhigh- risk students

and staff, available space, student enrollment,budget, technology capabilities, and

input from staff, students, family , and community members.

INSTRUCTIONAL MODELS
2020-21SCHOOL YEAR

ON- SITE HYBRID
COMPREHENSIVE

DISTANCE LEARNING

StudentsSafely Learn
School

Students Safely Learn School
and Away from School

Students Safely Learn Away
from School

All studentshaveaccessto in person
Instructionin accordancewith publichealth

requirements

Studentgroupshaveaccessto in person
instructionusing schedulesand/or

prioritizing certain grades courses or
programs,in accordance publichealth

requirementsOnSite instructionis
supplementedby ComprehensiveDistance

All are inlearningthrough
ComprehensiveDistanceLearninginstruction
occursremotelywithverylimitedexceptions

forinpersonsupports

Learning

RESPONSE TO OUTBREAK
Districts, schools, needto to usemultiple
modelsthroughouttheschoolyear meetevolvinghealthconditions

Evenwhenthe primaryplanis throughan Hybridlearningmodel
Short DistanceLearningmayberequiredduetooutbreaks

Source:https://www.oregon.gov/ode/students-and
family /healthsafety /documents /ready% 20schools % 20safe % 20learners % 202020
21% 20guidance.pdf

Private School: La Salle Academy, Providence,

La Salle Academy currently has three committees researching, discussing, and planning in the

areas ofPhysical Distancing for Health & Safety, Curriculum , and the School Schedule. The goal

willbe to have each of these committees reportout their findings and recommendations

specific to our school, in order to further develop a plan for reopening in August.

Based upon thehealth and safety mandates put outby the CDC , La Salle Academy has retained

the services of the local architectural firm , to do a spatial analysis of our school buildings in

order to ascertain thenumber of studentswho can safely be in the schoolbuildings at any one
time.

Wewill be assessing class and group size limits; classroom layouts; cleaning protocols; face

coverings; screening studentsand staff; schoolschedules; visitors;busing and transportation;
and responding to staff or studentswho are sick . The guidanceoutlines policiesrequired to

safely reopen, as wellasrecommendationsfor implementationin each school.

44



Private School: Tilton School Private, coeducational, secondary boarding andday
school, Tilton, NH

Tilton School is adjusting school operations in a way that promotes socialdistance,maintains

frequent health screenings , and facilitates contact tracing, quarantine, and isolation / treatment

that any such illness would require , all in accordance with CDC guidance .

Basic introduction to the shapeofthe2020-2021 schoolyear:

Health Screenings: Weplan on daily health screeningsfor all students, eachmorning as

they exit dormsor arrive on campus. Schoolemployees will also be screened daily.

Housing: Seniors and postgraduateswillbe housed asusual,mostly in suites ofdouble

rooms, with four students sharing a bathroom . Other studentswillbe placed in singles,
sharing a bathroom on thehall. Some students in Mooremay share double rooms. We

may notbeable to offer rooms to day students this year, butwewill provideother

spaceson campus dedicated to their use andwehope tohavespace available for
student overnightsduring inclementweather.

Daily Schedule :Weare planning an academic schedule with fewer, longer periods per

day, five days perweek, and smaller class sizes. Mealtimeswillbe extended to facilitate

social distancing. Someevents, like schoolmeeting,might be conducted virtually .
Formal dinners willbe suspended .

FaceCoverings: Face coverings or masks are proving to help slow the spread of the

virus, and they arerequired in many communities. At Tilton Schoolthis fall, theremay
be “masksrequired events, times, and spaces, butwedo not expect to requiremasks
at all times. Students should plan to bringseveral reusable cloth maskswith them in the
fall, andfamilies should plan to wearmasksduring anyvisits to campus.

TENNESSEE

The TN Department of Education published an overview guide forreopening schools, intended

to address questions and provide considerations for localdistricts (published on 6/5/2020 ,

updated on 6/8/2020 ).

45



Fouroptions(ormodels) are providedwith detailed descriptions, strengths, challenges, and

considerationsrelated to health andwellness, academics, staff, flexibilities, andoperations

CATEGORY 1: All students physically in schoolbuildings

TraditionalReturn: The district begins the year with traditionalreturn and in
person classes,butalso has plans in place in case ofa need to quickly transition
into a differentmodel(provides optionsfor a staggered return, staggered
schedules, and operating schools year-round).

Staggered Return: Thedistrictwelcomes students back in a staggered format,

to allow for gradualreopeninguntilfull capacity is realized. Thismodelwould

allow for schools to reopen while stillproviding moretime and flexibilityto

address necessary professionallearningneeds, technology updates, and
supports for themostat-risk or trauma-affected students. This could be used in

conjunctionwith a welcomeback protocolthat seeks to understand students'

academic and physical/mentalhealth needs.

Staggered Schedules: Thedistrict creates staggeredtimes in which students

attendschoolas a way tominimize congestion. For example, schoolmay run
from 7:00am 2:00pm for Group A and 10:00 am 5:00pm for Group B

(teachers and students in assigned groups). Thiswould allow formore spread
for activities like recesses, lunch, etc.Itwill require schools and districts to

convert their instruction and resourcesto be delivered inmultiplemodalities.

Year-round: Regardlessof thereopeningmodelselected, districts could

consider planning to operate schools year-round. This might look like four tracks
ofstudents where one track is constantly “ off,” thereby reducing congestion by
25 % insideofschoolbuildings and allowing for the space to do socialdistancing

without the need to repurpose common or shared spaces.

CATEGORY 2 : All students participate in virtual and distance education

FulltimeDistance Education: Includingsuggestionsfor enrollingstudents full
time, either through an existing platform providedbythe districtor schoolorin
a virtualschool. As a note, full sets ofinstructionalmaterials,with videos and
assessmentswill be provided at no costto alldistricts in Tennessee in orderto
provide an option for distance education, shoulditbe needed.

Self- Paced orSemi- Independent: This category also includes suggestions
enrolling students in a self-paced program of study , either through an existing
platform adopted by localdistricts and schools or through recommended

programs. Thismay also includepacket-based instruction with virtualteacher

support. If a district is interested, this option is best suited for schools that
already use someversion of self-paced instruction .

CATEGORY 3 : Somestudents in physicalbuildings and somestudents virtual

46



Split days: Students attendhalfdays at school andhalfdays virtually.

Alternating days: Students attend alternating days of instruction , typically on a

2 -week cycle . For example , a student may be in schoolMonday, Wednesday ,
and Friday on Week A and then Tuesday and Thursday on Week B.

Physical attendance based on need: Schools allow for somestudents to be

physically in school while others attend schoolvirtually . Distance instruction can
occur in synchronous format (livestream the class ), through recordings, or

similar.

CATEGORY 4: Cyclical or intermittentphysicaland virtualeducation

Staff and Family Choice: Somedistricts may opt for families and staffmembers

to select the form of education that they would like to use . This would mean

that students may select to learn from home(while stillbeingenrolled in the

district). Similarly , teacherswho are unable to return to work may be those

teachers who also participate in distance instruction.

Emergency or ResponsiveSituations Only ( ex . Virus Resurgence): This is a
contingency plan that would beimmediately implementedby districts and

schools based on the community, regionalor state resurgence of the virus. This

would need to be a plan that can beimmediately implemented and should be
clearly articulated through district continuity of instruction plans.

The Tennessee Department of Education (TDOE ) is also producing a series of toolkits for school

reopening. These toolkits will encompass the details and planningguidance (specific sample

procedures and actions) referenced through the framing in this guide.

TN DOE engaged in conversations andsolicited feedback ( including public feedback , individual

meetings and conversations, and a needs assessment) to develop the guide, implementation

guidance , and sample procedures and actions.

Specific themes that emerged from this needs assessment in each bucket

Academics: The state and /or individual districts may need to close schools again or

implement social distancing procedures that adjust the way schools are run. This will

impact the ways in which schools are able to deliver high -quality academic programs for
all students .

Whole Child: Studentsand familiesmayhaveadditionalnon- academicneedsas a result

of thepandemic. Wemust also focuson equippingeducatorsto help them address

47



non- academicneeds. Allofthese areas shouldbe attended to , especially as schools

reopen.

Educators: Teachers are working hard and need support to reach all students . This is
especially true for ourmost vulnerable students and those attending lower
performing schools .Wemust empower our educators to teach in varied settings
and spaces so that all children can bereached.

Systems: Localdistrictswill need to adjustbudgets to accommodate surplus and

deficit line itemsbutmay still have localexpenses that exceed budget forecasts.

Districts should review and consider a series of frameworks that ask important, butbroad

questions:

ACADEMICS EDUCATORSSYSTEMS

1 SchoolImprovement 1) Literacy

2) High Quality Materials
3) Innovative Assessments

WHOLE CHILD

1) Online Tool

2 ) Citizenship & Civics
3 ) SpecialPopulations

1) Grow YourOwn
2) EPP & LPP Innovation
3) LeaderDevelopment PRIORITIES

SYSTEMS ACADEMICS WHOLECHILD EDUCATORS

4 ) DigitalBadging2 ) DigitalInfrastructure

3) InnovationGrants

Focus: OnlineAcademic

ToolandPBSvideo

expansion

4 ) School Nutrition
5 ) Career Exploration
and Counseling

POST-COVID ADDITIONS

How do you addressreopeningschoolswithin public health and education

recommendationsand guidelines?

How do you plan for a resurgence? Whatwillyour plan bewhen a parentis

diagnosedwith COVID - 19 ? A student? A teacher? More than one individualin the

school?

How do you think about compensatory education ifa school or classroom needs

to close or for students whomust stay home due to underlying medical

conditions orinfection and exposure ?

How will you communicate your plans and decisions ?

The document provides vocabulary and explainspotentially new terms (e.g., asynchronous

learning, blended learning, distance learning, resurgence , staged reopening), and outlines

continuing and new responsibilities or experiences of various teams, individuals and
stakeholders within the school system .

48



The documentalso outlines the planning thatwill need to take place in order for schools to

reopen in a way that is safe for stakeholders, and that maximizes studentlearning, alongwith
specific steps/ actionsthat LEAs can take before the start of the year and/orbefore the startof

summer professionaldevelopment:

Table - top exercises

Surveys to gather information about “ intent to return” from families

Identification andmodification of operational needs of schools

Identification ofdata points tied to reopeningto effectivelymeasure goals or targets
that a localsystem hasputin place (thismay includetargets related to health,student

achievement, and/ oroperationalcapacity, amongstothers)

Alldistrictsare encouraged to conduct feasibility studiesrelated to thedistrict

infrastructure, supply chain ofneededmaterials(including adequate supplies of disinfecting

and personalhygienematerialsand PPE), budget implications, staffingmodels, and

behavioralfeasibility for any strategiesin place (includingfamilies, staff, and students).

A framework is providedthatcan be used to assesses virus spread within a community

against the readinessand preparednessofthesystem to address subsequentneeds and

assistwith decision-makingat the locallevel.

49



SampleFramework: Decision-MakingStarting Point

Low

VirusSpread

Schoolshouldnotconsider 3 4
reopening without prior
planning.

Blended learningmay be Schools may befully
necessary, butmajority of operationalwith compliance
delivery in person with full with established policies and

implementation of policies procedures to prevent,
and proceduresto identify and mitigate the

prevent, identify and spread of COVID - 19 .

mitigate the spread of
COVID - 19.

Schoolshould notconsider 2 Blended learning, partial
reopening without prior days or othermixedmodels

planning to prevent
Blended learning, partial with fullcompliancewith

identifyandmitigatethe
daysor othermixed

established policiesand

spread of COVID - 19.
modelswith full proceduresto prevent,

implementationofpolicies identifyandmitigatetheand proceduresto
spread ofCOVID - 19 .

prevent, identify and

mitigate the spread of

COVID -19.

1 Schoolordistrict- level Blendedlearning, partial
closures with transfer to daysor othermixed models

School should not consider
fully virtuallearning. with fullcompliancewith

reopeningwithout prior
established policies and

planning to prevent
procedures to prevent,

identify and mitigate the
identifyandmitigatethe

spreadofCOVID- 19 spread of COVID -19. School
or district-levelclosuresmay
be required

Public SchoolSystemsReadiness
Low High

High

* Low virus spread isdefined as no reported increases in the number of casesover thelast 14 days. High virus
spread is defined ashigh levels of community transition , including outbreaks or increases in cases .

50



Examples of Institutions ofHigher Education ( ) Reopening

andMitigation Plans for 2020
Summary:

Several have posted reopeningandmitigation plans on theweb in a variety of formats, but
similarities include: plans for hybrid course instruction (in -person and online); reduced class and event

sizes; encouragementor requirementofthe use of cloth face coverings; increased cleaning and

disinfection;modificationsof flow of foot traffic to encourage socialdistancing; testing and contact
tracingprograms. Many schoolswillmodify their schedules to hold classes through fall holidays and end
in -person classes by Thanksgiving.

Historically Black Colleges and Universities ( )

Hampton University, Hampton, VA

Population (2019):

Total Students: 4,293

Undergraduate : 3,714

Graduate andProfessional: 579

Enrollmentby Race/ Ethnicity

American Indian/ Alaskan Native 0.32 %
Asian 0.41%

Black 92.33 %

Hispanic/ Latino 1.51%

Pacific Islander 0.11%

White 2.51%

The Fall 2020 Reopening Plan addresses the following key areas :

Repopulationofthe campus;
Diagnostic testing to detect andpreventthe spread of COVID - 19; regularand

ongoingreportingand monitoringofhealth conditions;
Separationofindividualswho test positiveor exhibit symptomsof COVID - 19;
Standardizedcontact tracingprotocols;
Hybrid course instruction - online, remote and modified in-person (classroom );
A “ new normal” for sporting and large-scale events;
Non -traditionalfood service delivery.

Community mitigation strategieswillremain importantand will bebased on updated

guidelines in response to this fluid situation. The following precautionswillbe
implemented this Fall:

In-person class sizeswill be reduced to 50 % capacity;

Occupancy guidelines willbeposted formeetingand conference workspaces;
CDC recommended six -feet ofdistancebetween individuals willbeenforced;

Large in-person gatheringswillbelimited to 50 % capacity;
On-campushousingwill be assigned at reduced capacity;
Communal spaceswill be limited by capacity guidelines;
Face coveringswill be worn by all students, faculty, staff and visitors.

51



Source :

http://docs.hamptonu.edu/student/pirate on course fall 2020 reopening plan 2020
0617182058.pdf

Lincoln University , Pennsylvania

Population (2019)
Total students : 2241

Undergraduate : 2040
Graduate: 201

Enrollmentby Race/ Ethnicity

Hispanic/Latino 4.4 %

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.1%

Asian 0 %

Black or African American 85.0 %

White 0.7 %

Two ormore races 2.9 %

Race and ethnicity unknown 4.1

Below are considerationsregarding the safety and privacy of the LU community:
Employeesare encouragedto wear their own cloth face coveringormaskwhen

they arrive on campuseach day. A cloth face coveringwill be providedat the
main security gate if an employeeorvisitor is not in possessionofone at the
pointofentry
TheEEOC authorized employers to take employees' temperatures to try and
ward off the spreadof the coronavirus. All authorizednon-medicalLU staff

conducting temperaturescreeningswillbetrainedin advance,use non-touch

digitalthermometer devices, adhere to confidentialityconsiderationsandbe
required to wearpersonalprotectiveequipmentto help keep ourworkplace

safe. According to the EEOC, employers are notrequiredto satisfy a religious
accommodationrequest from an employee who doesnotwant to havetheir

temperature taken because COVID- 19representsa direct threat to workplace

safety. In orderto ensure compliance with privacy laws, recordsof temperature

screeningsorsymptom assessmentswillnotbemaintainedbydepartments.
Departmentsmaynote that a staffmemberwasnotatwork on a given day(s)
because theywere on a leave ofabsence formonodisciplinaryreasons. Anyone

with symptomsmustself -isolateuntilthe testingresults are confirmed.
Ifthetest results arenegative, you may return to campus after

providing HR with a copy ofthe negativetestreport.

Permittedby theADA, the OfficeofHuman Resourceswillrequirea
note from a doctor or local clinic certifying an employee's fitness for
duty when the employee is released to return to theworkplace after
self-isolation related to COVID - 19 concerns.

Source: https://www.lincoln.edu/sites/default/files/pdf/hr/return-to-campus.pdf

52



Community Colleges :

ArizonaWestern College (HLCU ), Yuma, Arizona

Population ( 2019)

TotalStudents: 11,000+

EnrollmentbyRace /Ethnicity
74 % Hispani
14 % White

3 % Unknown
3 % Black
2 % Two or more races

1% American Indian/ Alaska Native
1% Asian

0 % NativeHawaiian/Pacific Islander

In orderto safelyresume college operationsfor the Fallsemester, the college is creating
a phased plan, dependenton national, regionaland localhealth officials. The plan will

evolve over thenextseveralweeksas departmentsorganize team schedules, plans for
physicaldistancing, andworkload.

These planswillservetwo overarchinggoals: keepingpeoplesafe, and helpingour
students their educationalgoals and be supportedby four concepts:

Administrativeand Engineeringsolutionsto keeppeoplesafe
This includeslimited class sizes, limitedgroupmeetings, sneeze shields,

distancing

Required face coverings or facemasks forall faculty, staff, students. This isnot
optional.

Masksare not requiredwhen you are in an officeby yourself, or

walking across campus by yourself.

Reducing population density on campuses

Oneplan is 4 DaysHere / 10 DaysRemote. This is optionalper

departmentleadership, as a method to reducethe numberof

peopleon campus, and createopportunitiesto isolate.

Establishinga Car-to- Classroom plan for studentsfor Fall2020 no
events, no gather, no hangingout in GameRoom , studentloungesor
other gatheringspaces.

Heavyrelianceon Remote Services

Virtually alldepartments will continue to offer virtualservices to

students , colleagues and the community throughout the fall semester

and beyond.

Employeesare expected to host asmanymeetingsas possible via

Source: https://www.azwestern.edu/COVID

53



Community College of Baltimore County, Baltimore, MD

Population ( 2019)

TotalStudents: 59,145

Enrollmentby Race/ Ethnicity
Multi-Racial: 2 %

Asian : 6 %

Hispanicor Latino: 6 %

Unknown: 9 %

African -American / Black : 34 %
White :45 %

Community CollegeofBaltimoreCountyhas a three-phasedreopeningapproach. Phase
BeginsAugust 1 and includes: Face-to-face classeswillbeoffered, butwith the

appropriatesocialdistancingrestrictions.Moston -campusserviceswillbe available.
Additionalinformationpostedon website:

SocialDistancingand PPE: Socialdistancing is one ofthe best toolswehave to
keep safe. Coupled with the smart use ofpersonalprotective equipment(PPE),
it's thebestway to limit the spread of the virus. We're providing PPE and

putting new foot traffic patterns and othermeasures in place to keep you safe

in instructionalspaces, common areas and elsewhere on campus.

Building entrances and exteriors: Buildingexterior doors are designated as
ENTRANCE ONLY, EXIT ONLY, or available only as a FIRE EXIT.
Interior doors , stairwells, hallways and elevators:

Where feasible , interiordoors are propped open tominimize touch

points. Internalstairwells are designated as either UP stairwellsor
DOWN stairwells.

Floormarkingsare installed to facilitate socialdistancing. Widehallways

willbeTWO WAY.Morenarrow hallways are designated as ONEWAY.
Elevatorshave a maximum occupancyof two persons.

Hygiene, Cleaning, and Disinfecting
CCBC BuildingServices staffhave deep cleaned all lavatories, offices,

classrooms, labs, locker roomsandother common spaces using a
hospital-grade disinfectant andHEPA-filtered vacuum cleaners.

Custodianshave been trained in CDC sanitizingprotocoland continue to
clean and disinfect areas throughout theday. This includessanitizing
touch points such as light switches, phones, doorhandles, railings, etc.
Somerestroomshave been taken outof service to minimize the number
of facilities thatneed to be cleaned multiple times throughout theday.

The college is providing disposable wipes for students and employees

to sanitize their work areas. All individuals are encouraged to wash their

hands frequently, andmakeuse of hand sanitizer dispensers located
throughout allbuildings on campus.

Source :https://www.ccbcmd.edu/About-CCBC/Policies-and
Procedures /Coronavirus /phased-return.aspx

54



Clark State Community College, Springfield, OH

Population (2019 )

Total Students: 5,669

Enrollment by Race/ Ethnicity
Native American 0.12 %

Asian 1.13 %
African American 15.88 %

Hispanic 0.65 %

Caucasian 74.93 %

Other 7.29 %

CSCC has started providing guidance for students and staff for the fall.

The plan includes guidance on classrooms andcafeterias, which state:

Classrooms, labs and common areas havebeen reformatted to take physical

distancing requirements into consideration.

The cafeteria on theLeffelLanecampus is notyetopen.When it does re-open,
and in other food vending areas that are now available, tables, chairs and

boothswillbe arranged to maintain social distancing between parties.
Waiting-areas and the flow ofcustomers through the service area willbe

arranged to ensure social distancing. Handsanitizerswillbe available in food
service areas.

Source:https://www.clarkstate.edu/about-us/coronavirus-covid-19-information/return
to -campus-guide/ return -to-campus-timelines/

55



Private Institutions:

Emory University , Atlanta , GA

Population (2019 )

Total Students : 15,451

Undergraduate : 8,079

Graduateand Professional: 7,372

UndergraduateEnrollmentby Race/ Ethnicity

Caucasian /White 30.1%

Asian / Asian American 24.0 %
African American / Black 13.7 %

Hispanic / Latinx 12.8 %

Native American 0.6 %

Did NotIdentify5.9 %

Keydecisionsfor the fall semesterinclude:

Faculty, staff andstudentswill have options for returningto campusorinteracting
remotely.
Both onlineand in -person classes willbeofferedtohelp meet studentneeds.

Classeswillbegin Aug. 19and end by Thanksgiving, with final examsconducted
remotely. Classeswillbe held through the LaborDay holidayand fall break.
Graduate and professionalschoolsmay amendthis schedule slightly to meet
curricularneeds.

COVID - 19 testingwill bemandatory for all students livingin residencehalls, along

with thosetaking in -person classes, upon or shortly beforereturning to campus, and

willbe available atany timeduring thesemester for those who are symptomatic
andfor their close contacts. Faculty and staffwill haveaccess to testingon demand.
Campus residencehalls willreopen, with nomore than two studentsperroom .
Enhanced cleaningprotocolswillbe in nployed for residential, classroom and

common spaces.
Source:

http://news.emory.edu/stories/2020/06/er fall semester plans/ campus.html?utm source

=ebulletin & utm_medium = email& utm campaign= Emory Report EB 110620

VanderbiltUniversity, Nashville, TN

Population (2019 )

Total Students : 13,131

Undergraduate: 6,886

Graduate and Professional: 6,245

Enrollmentby Race/Ethnicity
White : 41.5 %

Asian / Pacific Islander: 15.3 %
Black : 11.7 %

Hispanic : 9.7 %
Two ormore races: 5.0 %

Race unknown: 4.5 %

56



American Indian : 0.4 %

VU student will return to campus June 26 , 2020.
To reduce population density in our dining halls ,we will expand opportunities formobile
ordering through Campus Dining and are creatingmore opportunities for grab -and -go options.
Wealso are modifying circulation and adding contactless “ tap” checkouts to promote health
and safety in dining halls.
Public health protocols, including symptom monitoring and temperature checks,mandatory
facemasks/coverings, public hand-sanitizer stations andphysicaldistancing, willbe in place.We
will ask allstudents who return to campus to sign an acknowledgmentof such protocols.
The university is also taking actions, such as enhanced cleaningprotocols changes to foot
traffic flow through buildings and on campus pathways, andmuch more, to ensure all campus
spaces and buildings support the health and safety of our students, staff and faculty
Source : https://www.vanderbilt.edu/coronavirus/2020/06/16/june-16-2020-our-plan-for-the
fall-semester /

John HopkinsUniversity, Baltimore, MD

Population (2019)

TotalStudents: 27,000+

Undergraduate: 5773

Undergraduate EnrollmentbyRace/Ethnicity
American Indian / Alaskan Native: 3%

Asian /Pacific Islander: 31%

Black : 13 %

Latinx/ Hispanic: 16 %
Unknown : 2 %

White/non-Hispanic: 21%

The university is open and operatingwith measures in place to protect thehealth ofour essential

workers and the community as well as ensure compliance with state and localmandatesrelated to
COVID -19 includingremote and online learning in lieu of in -person instruction and telework for the

majority ofour employees. Classeswill continue remotely.

Source: https://hub.jhu.edu/novel-coronavirus-information/frequently-asked-questions/

YaleUniversity, New Haven, CT

Population(2019)
TotalStudents: 13,433

Undergraduate : 5,964

Graduate and Professional: 7,469

Enrollmentby Race/Ethnicity
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.3 %

Asian 14.7 %

Black or African -American 5.8 %

Hispanic of any race 9.8 %
Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander 0.1%

57



O

White 42.7 %

Race/ ethnicity unknown 1.0 %

Yale University has listed guidance regarding:

Reactivatingon-campus research,
Canceling in-person summer programs,
Limiting size ofYale-hostedmeetingsand events,
Domestic and internationaltravel guidance
Postponing visits to campus

Donatingpersonalprotective equipment to the Yale New Haven Health System and other
healthcare organization

Self-monitoring daily , and staying homeif you are unwell.

Source: https://covid19.yale.edu/

SouthernMethodistUniversity, Dallas, TX

Population ( 2018 )

Total Students: 11,649

Undergraduate : 6,479

Graduate: 5,170

EnrollmentbyRace /Ethnicity
Hispanic – 11.6 %
Asian

Black/African American %

AmericanIndian/ AlaskaNative
NativeHawaiian Pacific Islander
Two ormore races

Developed a plan that includes: Enhanced cleaning protocols, physicaldistancing, temperature
screening, self- screening, etc.
FAQs are listedon website for students, faculty, staff, and others

Contentfrom someof FAQs:

SMU is now requiring that everyone on the SMU campus wear a face covering over the

mouth and nose in allpublic indoor spaces at least through Aug. 4. This requirement

accordance with the latest Dallas County ordinance includes classrooms; building

entrances and exits; lobbies and lounges; aswell as in hallways, stairwells , restrooms and
elevators and also extends to SMU's MeadowsMuseum both for staff and visitors.

The COVID -19 website willbeupdated as positive cases are identified.Additionally ,anyone
can sign up to receive alertswhen the site is updatedby sendingan emailto subscribe
covidcasenotifications@list.smu.edu.

SMU is revisingour semester schedule to reducethenumberofstudents returningto

campus afterholiday traveland lessen the chanceof contagion.

Fall classeswill start on campusMonday, August24, asoriginallyscheduled.

However,wewillnotbreak for the September7 LaborDay holidayandOctober 12-13 Fall
Break; they willbein- class instructiondays.

58



This change allows studentsto complete their on-campus studies and leave campus housing

prior to the Thanksgiving holiday. Classes will shift to online for the remainingclass

days after Thanksgiving , and all final examsfor the fall 2020 semester willbe administered
online .

All employeesreturning to work completed a “ COVID- 19 Return- to -Work Training” before
returningto campus.

Source:https://blog.smu.edu/coronavirus-covid-19/2020/06/26/facilities-communication-plan-and
custodial-response-guide/

Collegeof theHoly Cross,Worcester, Massachusetts

Population(2019)
TotalStudents: 3,142

Undergraduate: 3,0142

Graduate :

Undergraduate EnrollmentbyRace / Ethnicity

African American 4.45 %
Asian American 4.76 %

Hispanic/ Latino 10.2%

Native American / AlaskanNative 0.0701%
Native Hawaiian/ Pacific Islander 0.0701%
White 70.5 %

MultipleRaces 3.64%

College of the Holy Cross: intention is to return students to campus for the Fallsemester in early July for
all students who are able to return .

All persons on campus will be required to adhere to a number ofmeasures to comply with public health
guidelines. These include, but are not limited to, wearing masks in public , maintaining six feet of

distance, following alldirectives regarding use of elevators and other spaces on campus , and limiting the
size of gatherings . In addition all persons on campus will berequired to submit to the COVID - 19 testing ,

tracing and quarantine protocols thatwillbe established by the College.

Students who are notbeable or do notwish to return to campus in the fall willhave the opportunity to

advance their academic program remotely (in-person, hybrid or fully online).

Limitingoccupancyto twopersonsper room inresidencehalls and establishingisolation and quarantine
spaces forstudents.

TheBoardof Trustees endorsed a correspondingbudgetplan, includingan estimated $ 10-$ 12 million
for additionalcleaning, studenthousing, spacemodificationsincludingclassroom technologyto facilitate

hybridand onlinelearning, and to cover the costs ofthe required COVID- 19monitoring, testing, tracing
and providingquarantine/ isolation spacesand caringfor studentswhomayneedto use those spaces

59



PublicInstitutions

PurdueUniversity,WestLafayette,Indiana

• Population(2019)
o Total Students:44,551

� Undergraduate:33,672
� Graduate: 9,963

o UndergraduateEnrollmentby Race/Ethnicity

� African American 3.0%
� Asian American8.0%
� Hispanic/Latino5.0%

� NativeAmerican/Alaskan Native0%
� NativeHawaiian/PacificIslander0%

� White 58.0%
� MultipleRaces3.0%

� International19%
� Unknown/Undeclared2.0%

The Safe Campus Task Forcewas establishedinMarch2020 by PresidentDaniels to providea series of
recommendationsfor the potentialreturnof students to campus in August

The Protect Purdue Implementation Team is working to develop the policies, procedures, guidelines,

strategies and tactics that will enable the University to further its discovery and learning missions in the

safest possible ways during the COVID-19 pandemic. These seven individuals lead subcommittees that

are comprised of or engaged with dozens of faculty, staff, students and outside experts.

Students will have the option to pick whether they would like to attend Purdue on-campus or through a

fully online option for Fall 2020.

All students, faculty, and staff who return to campus will participate in training exercises to learn the

required safety practices and navigate the new normal on campus.

Students, faculty, and staff will be required to receive the flu vaccination in the fall, subject to

established exceptions.

Protocolsincludewearinga face mask in most indoor settings,and outdoorsif socialdistancingcannot be
maintained;new buildingsignage andother measuresto promotesocial distancing;and robust personalhygiene.

Studentswithhealthconditionsthat placethemat greatervulnerability to severe illness due to COVID-

19will beofferedliving accommodationsthat reducetheir risk of contractingthe disease.Classrooms,
living spaces,dining halls andlibrarieswillbede-densifiedto allowfor safe socialdistancing,withan

enhancedcommitmentto the healthandsafetyof our campus community,andstudentoccupant
capacities in all classroomswillbereducedby approximately50%.

Purdue is creating internalcapabilities to rapidlyassess, sample and test any student,faculty or staff member

reportingCOVID-19 symptoms,along with the ability to test those identified through clinically relevant contact

tracing (symptomatic and asymptomatic).Testing protocols may also include the proactive testing of roommates,

screeningof athletic teams,closely monitoringselected sites and surveillancetesting throughout the

semester.

60



All studentswho test positivefor COVID-19,whetheror notthey showsymptoms,willberequiredto

quarantine;Purduehasset asideapproximately400 beds for isolationandquarantine,withcontingency

plans inplaceshouldmorespacebeneeded.

Customary fall and holiday breaks will be eliminated to allow on-campus instruction to conclude by

Thanksgiving.

Source:https://protect.purdue.edu/app/uploads/2020/06/protect-purdue-plan-20200612.pdf

PennsylvaniaStateUniversity,StateCollege, Pennsylvania

TempleUniversity,Philadelphia,PA

• Population(2019)

o TotalStudents:96,408
� Undergraduate:81,080

� Graduate:15,328
o UndergraduateEnrollmentby Race/Ethnicity

� AfricanAmerican5.65%
� AsianAmerican6.12%

� Hispanic/Latino7.31%
� NativeAmerican/AlaskanNative0.14%

� NativeHawaiian/PacificIslander0.12%
� White65.60%

� MultipleRaces3.36%
� Unknown/Undeclared2.36%

• Morethan250 faculty,staff andadministratorscomprised16 task groups appointedto develop

PennState’s Back to Stateplans,guidedby facultyscientificandpublichealthexperts.

• To helplimitprolongedperson-to-personcontact,the fall semester willbeginas originally

scheduledonMonday,Aug.24,butcampus-based,residentialinstructionwill endFriday,Nov.
20,withthe remainderof the semester— includingfinalexaminations— being delivered
remotelyandonlinewhenclasses resumeafter Thanksgivingbreak onNov.30.Someunits,such

as DickinsonLawandPennStateLaw,havedifferentstart dates andwill also beginas originally

scheduled.

• To minimizetravelandlowerthe risk of possiblyspreadingcoronaviruson campuses,classeswill
beheldonLabor Day (Sept.7).

• The semesterwill end followingfinals on Dec. 18,as originally planned.Ina phasedapproach,

the Universitywillbeginto bring certain employeesback to campus this summerto prepare
campuses for the returnof students in the fall., this fall,noresidencehallroomor spacemay be

occupiedby morethan two residents.

• A robust testing andcontact-tracingprogramwill test symptomaticindividualsandconduct
asymptomatictestingon individualswho are identifiedin the contact-tracingprocess.Penn

Statewill hireadditionalstaff to serveas contacttracers as neededto supportall campuses and
plans to enhanceaccess to early health-careconsultationand treatment.

• Source:https://news.psu.edu/story/623188/2020/06/14/academics/penn-state-plans-resume-

campus-work-and-learning-fall-semester

• Population(2019)

61



o TotalStudents:37,914

� Undergraduate:28,420
� Graduate:9,494

o Enrollmentby Race/Ethnicity
� AmericanIndian/AlaskaNative.08%

� Asian12%
� AfricanAmerican 12%

� Hispanic/Latino7%
� PacificIslander.07%

� Two or MoreRaces 3.5%
� White, non-Hispanic53.4%

� Unknown4.2%

• Developeda comprehensiveplanthat includes four publichealthpillars:FaceCoverings,
PhysicalDistancing,Hand Hygiene,and HealthMonitoring.

o Usea face covering:Facecoverings,whichmaybehomemadeor commerciallyavailable,
mustbeworn whileon campus inbuildingentrances,lobbies,hallways,classrooms,

commonareas, and in any andall locationswherephysicaldistancingof six feet cannotbe
maintained.You are permittedto bring your own face covering.Departmentswillmakeface

coverings availableto employeesand therewill bedistributionpoints for students who
cometo campus withoutone.Outdoors,face coverings shouldbeworn in any location

wherephysicaldistancingcannotbemaintained.
o Practicephysicaldistancing:Keep a minimumof six feet apart,or two arm’s 1 lengths,from

othersat all times to minimizethe chanceof breathingdroplets froman infected individual.
o Practicehandhygiene:Wash hands at leasthourlywith soap andwarmwater for at least20

to 30 seconds.Inbetweenhandwashings,usehand sanitizer.Dispensersare available
throughoutcampus in common areas,lobbies andon each floor of campusbuildings.The

wholecommunitymust take care to avoid handshakes,touchingone’s face and touching
commonsurfaces as muchas possible.

o Monitoryour health:It is imperativethat eachmemberof theTemplecommunity and
guests and visitors gainanunderstandingof their own health as wellas the signs and

symptoms of COVID-19disease.Check your temperaturebeforereportingto university
spacesevery day.If you are an employeeandhavea temperatureof 100.4or greater,or any

other symptoms of COVID-19,pleasereport this to your supervisorand do not reportto
work.If you are a student,contactStudentHealthServices for an assessmentanddo not

reportto class or any other activities.

• StudentandEmployeeHealthServices is creating a newCOVID-19Testing andTreatmentfacility
that is separatefromnormalHealthServicesoperations.

• Becauseof its criticalvalue as a containmentmeasure,Temple is partneringwith PDPHto develop

an internalContactTracingUnit.

• Source:https://www.temple.edu/sites/www/files/health-safety-plan.pdf

Universityof Kentucky,Lexington,KY

• Population(2019)

o TotalStudents:30,545

� Undergraduate:22,276

62



FloridaInternationalUniversity,Miami,FL

� Graduate/Other:8,269

o Enrollmentby Race/Ethnicity
� AmericanIndian/AlaskanNative.2%

� Asian3.6%
� Black or AfricanAmerican6.5%

� Hispanicor Latino 4.8%
� NativeHawaiian/OtherPacificIslander.1%

� RaceandEthnicity Unknown3.4%
� Two or MoreRaces 3.4%

� White73.1%

• Specific guidancehas beendevelopedin the following areas:UniversityResponseand
Operations;CampusRestart;EmployeeandHumanResourcesInformation;International

Students,Scholars,and Visitor Information;InternationalTravelandEducationAbroad;and
Events andAthletics.

• DetailedFAQs havebeen postedfor students andstaff,examples of answers:

o All summer2020courses were movedto onlineor remotelearningformats.
o Temporary remotework is appropriatefor many unitsor positions,butnotall.We are

strongly encouragingcollegeanddivision leaders to be flexiblewith employees,
understandingthat the work of the institutionmuststillbedone,but that we must

protect the health,safety andwell-being of everyonewho works inour special
community.

o All UK HealthCarehospitals andclinics haveprotocolsandsystems inplaceto keep
patients,visitorsand healthcare workers safe.Youshouldnotavoidseekingcareout of

concerns over the coronavirus (COVID-19).If youare experiencingflu-likesymptoms,
call your healthcare provider first so they can adviseyou.

• Source:https://www.uky.edu/coronavirus/faqs

• Population(2018)
o Total Students: 57,942

� Undergraduate:48,818
� Graduate:9,124

o UndergraduateEnrollmentby Race/Ethnicity

� American Indian/Alaska Native0%

� Asian 2%
� Black or African American 12%
� Hispanic/Latino 67%

� NativeHawaiianor other 0%

� White 8%
� Two or more races 2%
� Unknown1%

• FIU added the following areas to consider for re-opening their campus:

• Increasing cleaning;

• Early start of the semester pivot to all online by Thanksgiving missing the flu season; Number of

students per f2f classes based on size of classroom by physical distancing requirements;

63



Tribal Institutions

SalishKootenaiCollege,Pablo,MT

Institutesof AmericanIndianArts,SantaFe,NewMexico

• Population (2019)

o Total Students: 614

� Undergraduates: 338

� Graduate/Other: 276

o Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity

� American Indian/Alaska-63.4%

• Providemasksto all;

• Lower number of students at the dorms;

• Graduateclassesonline;

• Payingattentionto newstudents andseniorsfor somef2f classes;

• Intentional,comprehensive,andintensivesupplementaltraining andsupportfor faculty to

improveonlineclasses;

• Technologicalsupportfor classes that willbe f2f andonlinestreamingat the sametime;

• Assessmentof which facultyandstaff mustwork remotely;Planfor rotationof staff inoffices;

• Signalingat stairs for onedirectionmovement;andPlexiglassas barriers inappropriatehigh

volumeof serviceareas.

• Source:https://www.fiu.edu/coronavirus/?utm_source=mainpage&utm_medium=banner&utm
_campaign=yellow-banner#1

• Population(2017)
o Total Students: 816

� Bachelor’s degree: 249
� Associate degree/Certificate/Other:567

o Enrollmentby Race/Ethnicity
� American Indian79.3%

� Non-Indian20.7%

• Fallplans not on website yet: Informationfrom Spring:
o The majorityof activities (classes,meetings,consultations,etc.) are virtually conducted.

However, some campus operations are still being conductedinperson. Social Distancing
measures are in place.

o Faculty,staff, and students will needto maintaina distance of at least 6 feet from each
other.

o COVID-19EmergencyStudentFunding
� The COVID-19EmergencyFundingis availableto youas a studentto helppay for

food,housing,Internetaccess,andother needs that are impactingyour needto

work onyour education.We havea limitedamountof money available,andthereis
a reviewcommitteethat will determinehow to distributethesefunds.Completing

this applicationdoes NOT meanthat you will receivefunding.

• Source:https://www.skc.edu/skc-covid-19-status-and-updates/

64



Source:https://iaia.edu/message-from-dr-martin-about-covid-19/

� Black/AfricanAmerican-.2%

� Hispanicof any race-10.6%
� Asian- .5%

� White/Caucasian-11%
� NativeHawaiian/PacificIslander-0%

� Two or moreRaces-6.7%
� Unknown-7.2%

• Havea campus wide guidanceandprinciples documentwhich includes:

o Socialdistancingprotocols will be required to minimizeclose contact—sixfeet or morein
distancemustbe maintainedwhen interactingwith other people.

o Facialcoverings are requiredin all publicareas when socialdistancing cannot be maintainedor
guaranteed.

o Handhygiene is required—frequentwashingwithsoap and water or using hand sanitizer.
o Usesignageandother communicationsto remindstudents,faculty, andstaff regarding the

utmost importanceof socialdistancing,hand hygiene,and respiratoryetiquette.
o Protectiveequipmentwill be provided,e.g. face coverings,barriers,etc.

o Environmentalcleaning anddisinfectionwill take placeseveral times daily, especially inhigh
traffic areas andon hightouchsurfaces.

o Individualoffice spaces anddesks cannot be shared,andmaximumcapacitywill be reducedfor
conferencerooms andcommonareas to follow socialdistancing protocols.

o Meetingsinwhichsocialdistancing cannot be maintainedwill requirethe use of virtualZoom
technologyor other web-basedvideo conferencing tools.

65



Monitoring and Evaluation Considerations for K-12

Schools and Institutions of Higher Education (IHE)

As schools and IHE across the country plan for Fall re-opening, we need to think proactively about how we will
monitor implementation of testing and mitigation strategies and evaluate the associated outcomes. This
document outlines mitigation strategies commonly found in school re-opening plans and as outlined in CDC
guidance, potential evaluation questions schools and IHE can consider prioritizing in the early days of reopening,
and proposed indicators school and IHE can consider monitoring across several domains of COVID-19 reality.
Together, these provide an overarching approach for the monitoring and evaluation of various interventions and
their impacts for continuous quality improvement as schools navigate re-opening.

As schools and IHE across the country make plans for Fall re-opening, monitoring and evaluation of the
implementation and impact of COVID-19 testing and mitigation strategies will be essential to inform continuous
quality improvement of these interventions. This document outlines common mitigation strategies based on
CDC considerations for K-12 and IHE as well as potential evaluation questions and indicators.

Common Mitigation Strategies inK-12 Schools and Institutionsof Higher Education:

PotentialEvaluationQuestions:

o Staying homewhen sick or self-isolating when appropriate

o Handhygieneand respiratoryetiquette
o Cloth face coverings

o Adequate hygienesupplies (e.g., soap,handsanitizer, tissues)
o Signs and messages that promoteeveryday protectivemeasures and describe how to stop the spreadof

germs
o Cleaning and disinfection, as outlined by CDC guidance

o Avoiding shared objects
o Adequate ventilation

o Modifiedlayouts to support social distancing
o Physicalbarriers and guides

o Limitinguse of communalspaces
o Modifiedfood service practices

1) How are K-12 Schools and Institutions of Higher Education implementingCOVID-19 mitigation strategies
to test for, contain, and slow the spread of COVID-19 and help keep students and faculty/staff safe?

2) How have K-12 Schools and Institutions of Higher Educationadapted their learningmethods to help
prevent the spread of COVID-19?

3) What are the key drivers for makingdecisions around school reopening or virtual classes?
4) What are the key drivers or factors administrators consider when choosing betweendifferent models of

structuring in-personand virtual learning (e.g.,staggering students at different intervals within cohorts)?
5) How have K-12 Schools and Institutions of Higher Educationprepared for cases of COVID-19 among their

students, faculty, and staff?

66



PotentialIndicatorsfor K-12 Schoolsand IHEto consider

*Note: Individualschools will needto consider data sources that meet their specific needs

CommunityandSchoolBurden:

• Total and incident COVID-19 tests/cases/hospitalizations/deaths among students and staff

• Number of COVID-19 testing sites available for students and staff

• Number of students, faculty, and staff using a COVID-19 symptom tracking apps

Mitigate to Help Keep Students/Faculty/Staff Safe:

• COVID-19
o Number/proportionof publicspaces,workplaces,businesses,schools or homes practicing

appropriatecleaningand disinfectionpractices

o Number/proportionof students,faculty,andstaff that reportalways or almost alwaysusing
cloth face coveringsoutsidethe homeinthe last week andwhensocialdistancing is notpossible

o Number/proportionof students,faculty,andstaff reportingwashing hands inaccordancewith

CDC guidanceto prevent coronavirus
o Number/proportionof students,faculty,andstaff engaging in physical(social)distancingas

directedby CDC guidance
o Number/proportionof students,faculty, andstaff who has engaged inhomecleaningbehaviors

inthe pastmonth
o Numberof schools that havereducedclass sizes to allow for physicaldistancing

o Numberof schools that haveincreasedclassroomspace to allow for physicaldistancing
o Numberof sharedhousing facilities (e.g.,IHE residencehalls) that are openat lowercapacity

andsharedspaces are closed
o Numberof schoolathletic teams that limitany nonessentialspectators as muchas possible

• Indicatorsof Social/Behavioral/MentalHealthConsequencesof COVID-19

o Number/proportionof students,faculty,andstaff who haveusedtelehealthservices for non-
COVID-19healthcareneeds

o Number/proportionof students,faculty,and staff who report feeling stress related to COVID-19
has hada negativeimpacton their mentalhealth

o Number/proportionof students,faculty,and staff who havesoughtmentalhealthcare or
resources for stress andcopingrelatedto COVID-19

o Number/proportionof students,faculty,and staff reportingfeelings of resilience
o Number/proportionof suicide ideation/attempts

o Numberof students who haveincreaseduseof tobacco,alcoholandother substances
o Numberof students,faculty,and staff who feel safe from transmissionof COVID-19inschool

settings
Contain:

• Number/types of educational sessions provided to students, faculty, and staff on COVID-19, including

what to do if you think you are infected

• Number/proportionof students able to receive education online if needing to self-isolate

• Number/proportionof students, faculty, and staff who report deciding not to travel or changing travel

plans due to COVID-19

67



AdditionalResources:

These additional resources are included because there are likely other tools that families and administrators
may be consulting. Some of the practices that these resources recommendmay also be worth advancing.

ACHA:https://www.acha.org/documents/resources/guidelines/ACHA_Considerations_for_Reopening_IHEs_in_t
he_COVID-19_Era_May2020.pdf

• The AmericanCollegeHealth Association(ACHA) created a “Considerations for ReopeningInstitutionsof
HigherEducationin the COVID-19 Era” that provideguidelinesfor IHE to minimizethe risk of COVID-19

infections.Considerationsare organizedby the followingcategories:
o Public Health Considerations:Containmentand SurveillanceCapabilities

o The Workforce- Employee,Supervisorand Facility Considerations
o InstructionandLearningEnvironments

o StudentHealthServices- Patient Care,FacilityandAdministrative/StaffConsiderations
o HealthPromotion

o MentalHealth
o Other Key Campus Areas: Housing,Dining,Athletics, RecreationalPrograms,Facilities and

Club/IntramuralSports
o CommunicationsPlan: Elementsof EffectiveMessagingand Communication

o InternationalTravel

• The documentsuggests that IHEs should evaluate the feasibility of these recommendationsdepending
on their owncampus resources,capacity, demographics and environment.It is unclear if they planto

collect data and evaluate these considerations.
Johns Hopkins:https://www.centerforhealthsecurity.org/our-work/publications/covid-19-planning-guide-and-

self-assessment-for-higher-education

• Percent change in community movement/mobility (e.g., time spent at home, distance traveled, and by

destination such as transit stations, retail/ recreational, and worksites)

• Number/proportion of schools that report practicing appropriate cleaning and disinfection practices

• The Johns HopkinsCenter for HealthSecurity, the Council for Higher EducationAccreditation(CHEA),
and Tuscany Strategy Consulting(TSC) have created a self-assessmentcalculator and accompanying

toolkit to support IHEs as they assess readiness to open.The interactiveExcelspreadsheet calculates
baselinerisk scores basedon institutioncharacteristics (e.g.class size, residencecharacteristics,

transportation systems, etc.) and the impact of a series of mitigation steps on risk scores across multiple
domains (e.g.policies and procedures,connections to public healthinfrastructure,communication

systems,public health and safety measures,residences,dining services, extracurricular activities,
cleaning,and travel/transportation).

• It is unclear whether JHU and partners have plans to collect data among IHEs to assess baselinerisk and

mitigation.As a potentialarea of partnership,there would be value inaggregatingde-identifieddata to
assess baseline risk and preparedness among IHEs,by institutiontype (community college, public,

private,etc.).

68


	2020-0709 special-ed-comp-guide-memo.pdf
	Massachusetts Department of
	Elementary and Secondary Education
	75 Pleasant Street, Malden, Massachusetts 02148-4906  Telephone: (781) 338-3000
	TTY: N.E.T. Relay 1-800-439-2370

	MEMORANDUM
	Initial Evaluations, Reevaluations and IEP Team Meetings





